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MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
Jointly with the 

ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE 
November 8, 2017, 8:30 a.m. 

MWDOC Conference Room 101 
 
Committee: 
Director J. Thomas, Chairman   Staff: R. Hunter, K. Seckel, C. Harris, 
Director J. Finnegan      K. Davanaugh, H. Chumpitazi 
Director B. Barbre 
 
Ex Officio Member:  W. Osborne 
 
MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board 
of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion.  Each 
Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate 
committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be 
adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those 
Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the 
Committee should be made at this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate 
action on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of 
the Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 
18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, 
these public records will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at 
http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
PROPOSED BOARD CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
1. TREASURER'S REPORT 

a. Revenue/Cash Receipt Report –  October 2017 
b. Disbursement Approval Report for the month of November 2017 
c. Disbursement Ratification Report for the month of October 2017 
d. GM Approved Disbursement Report for the month of October 2017 
e. Water Use Efficiency Projects Cash Flow – October 31, 2017  
f. Consolidated Summary of Cash and Investment – September 2017 
g. OPEB Trust Fund monthly statement 

 
2. FINANCIAL REPORT 

a. Combined Financial Statements and Budget Comparative for the Period 
ending September 30, 2017 

b. Quarter ending September 2017 YTD Financials Actual versus Budget  
c. Audit Report FY 2016/17 

Page 1 of 177



A&F Committee Meeting November 8, 2017 

2 

ACTION ITEM 
 
3. OPTIONS FOR FUNDING CALPERS UNFUNDED LIABILITY  
 
4. LONG TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE , LIFE INSURANCE AND EMPLOYEE 

ASSISTANCE PLANS 
 
5. SELECTION OF CONSULTANT FOR ARCHITECTURAL, SPACE PLANNING, 

INTERIOR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 
 
6. AUTHORIZATION TO VOTE ON BEHALF OF MWDOC IN ACWA’S ELECTION OF 

PRESIDENT, VICE PRESIDENT AND BYLAW AMENDMENTS  
 
INFORMATION ITEMS – (THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL 
PURPOSES ONLY – BACKGROUND INFORMATION IS INCLUDED IN THE PACKET.  
DISCUSSION IS NOT NECESSARY UNLESS REQUESTED BY A DIRECTOR.) 
 
7. FY 2018-19 BUDGET SCHEDULE 
 
8. DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES REPORTS 

a. Administration 
b. Finance and Information Technology 

 
9. MONTHLY WATER USAGE DATA, TIER 2 PROJECTION, AND WATER SUPPLY 

INFORMATION 
 
OTHER ITEMS 
 
10. REVIEW ISSUES REGARDING DISTRICT ORGANIZATION, PERSONNEL 

MATTERS, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FINANCE AND INSURANCE 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly listed 

for action, may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those items 
designated for Board action, the Committee reviews the items and makes a recommendation for final 
action to the full Board of Directors; final action will be taken by the Board of Directors.  Agendas for 
Committee and Board meetings may be obtained from the District Secretary.  Members of the public 
are advised that the Board consideration process includes consideration of each agenda item by one 
or more Committees indicated on the Board Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the 
Board meeting considering an item consequently is advised. 
Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting 
by telephoning Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water 
District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  Requests must specify the 
nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A telephone number or other 
contact information should be included so that District staff may discuss appropriate arrangements.  
Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate time 
before the meeting for the District to provide the requested accommodation. 
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PARS DIVERSIFIED PORTFOLIOS 
MODERATE 

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE 

ANNUAL RETURNS 

ASSET ALLOCATION — MODERATE PORTFOLIO 

Comprehensive Investment Solution 
HighMark® Capital Management, Inc.’s (HighMark) 
diversified investment portfolios are designed to 
balance return expectations with risk tolerance. 
Key features include: sophisticated asset allocation 
and optimization techniques, four layers of  
diversification (asset class, style, manager, and 
security), access to rigorously screened, top tier 
money managers, flexible investment options, and 
experienced investment management. 
 
Rigorous Manager Due Diligence 
Our manager review committee utilizes a rigorous 
screening process that searches for investment 
managers and styles that have not only produced 
above-average returns within acceptable risk  
parameters, but have the resources and commitment  
to continue to deliver these results. We have set high  
standards for our investment managers and funds.  
This is a highly specialized, time consuming 
approach dedicated to one goal: competitive and 
consistent performance. 
 
Flexible Investment Options 
In order to meet the unique needs of our clients, 
we offer access to flexible implementation strategies:  
HighMark Plus utilizes actively managed mutual  
funds while Index Plus utilizes index-based 
securities, including exchange-traded funds. Both 
investment options leverage HighMark’s active asset 
allocation approach. 
 
Risk Management 
The portfolio is constructed to control risk through  
four layers of diversification – asset classes (cash,  
fixed income, equity), investment styles (large cap,  
small cap, international, value, growth), managers  
and securities. Disciplined mutual fund selection and  
monitoring process helps to drive return potential  
while reducing portfolio risk. 
 

WHY THE PARS DIVERSIFIED  
MODERATE PORTFOLIO? 

Q3 2017 

* Returns less than 1-year are not annualized. **Breakdown for Blended Benchmark: 26.5% S&P500, 5% Russell Mid Cap, 7.5% 
Russell 2000, 3.25% MSCI EM FREE, 6% MSCI EAFE, 33.50% BC US Agg, 10% ML 1-3 Yr US Corp/Gov’t, 1.50% US High Yield 
Master II, 1.75% Wilshire REIT, and 5% Citi 1 Mth T-Bill. Prior to October 2012, the blended benchmarks were 43% S&P 500; 2% 
Russell 2000, 5% MSCI EAFE, 15% ML 1-3 Year Corp./Govt, 30% BC Agg, 5% Citi 1 Mth T-Bill. Prior to April 2007, the blended 
benchmarks were 50% S&P 500, 15% ML 1-3Yr Corp/Gov, 30% BC Agg, and 5% Citi 1 Mth T-Bill.  

To provide growth of principal 
and income. It is expected that 
dividend and interest income will 
comprise a significant portion of 
total return, although growth 
through capital appreciation is 
equally important. 

Strategic Range Policy      Tactical 
Equity 40 - 60% 50% 50% 
Fixed Income 40 - 60% 45% 47% 
Cash 0 - 20% 5% 3% 

ANNUALIZED TOTAL RETURNS (Gross of Investment Management Fees, but 
Net of Embedded Fund Fees) 

HighMark Plus (Active) 

Current Quarter* 3.07% 
Blended Benchmark** 2.73% 
Year To Date 9.92% 
Blended Benchmark 8.45% 
1 Year 10.14% 
Blended Benchmark 9.15% 
3 Year 6.00% 
Blended Benchmark 6.15% 
5 Year 7.03% 
Blended Benchmark 7.27% 
10 Year 5.07% 
Blended Benchmark 5.21% 

Index Plus (Passive) 

Current Quarter* 2.73% 
Blended Benchmark** 2.73% 
Year To Date 8.48% 
Blended Benchmark 8.45% 
1 Year 8.95% 
Blended Benchmark 9.15% 
3 Year 5.72% 
Blended Benchmark 6.15% 
5 Year 6.88% 
Blended Benchmark 7.27% 
10 Year 5.08% 
Blended Benchmark 5.21% 

PORTFOLIO FACTS 
HighMark Plus (Active) 
Inception Data 10/2004 
No of Funds in Portfolio 19 

Index Plus (Passive) 
Inception Data 05/2006 
No of Funds in Portfolio 13 

Efficient Frontier 

Risk (Standard Deviation) 
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Conservative 

Moderately Conservative 

Moderate 

Capital Appreciation 
Balanced 

HighMark Plus (Active) 
2008 -22.88% 
2009 21.47% 
2010 12.42% 
2011 0.55% 
2012 12.25% 
2013 13.06% 
2014 4.84% 
2015 0.14% 
2016 6.44% 

Index Plus (Passive) 
2008 -18.14% 
2009 16.05% 
2010 11.77% 
2011 2.29% 
2012 10.91% 
2013 12.79% 
2014 5.72% 
2015 -0.52% 
2016 7.23% 
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HIGHMARK CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

350 California Street 
Suite 1600 
San Francisco, CA 94104  
800-582-4734 

www.highmarkcapital.com 

ABOUT THE ADVISER 
HighMark® Capital Management, Inc. (HighMark) has  
over 90 years (including predecessor organizations) of 
institutional money management experience with more 
than $16.6 billion in assets under management. 
HighMark has a long term disciplined approach to 
money management and currently manages assets for 
a wide array of clients. 
 
ABOUT THE PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT TEAM 
Andrew Brown, CFA® 

Senior Portfolio Manager 
Investment Experience: since 1994 
HighMark Tenure: since 1997 
Education: MBA, University of Southern California;  
BA, University of Southern California 
 
Salvatore “Tory” Milazzo III, CFA® 

Senior Portfolio Manager 
Investment Experience: since 2004 
HighMark Tenure: since 2014 
Education: BA, Colgate University 
 
J. Keith Stribling, CFA® 
Senior Portfolio Manager 
Investment Experience: since 1985 
HighMark Tenure: since 1995 
Education: BA, Stetson University  
 
Christiane Tsuda 
Senior Portfolio Manager 
Investment Experience: since 1987 
HighMark Tenure: since 2010 
Education: BA, International Christian University, Tokyo 
 
Anne Wimmer, CFA® 

Senior Portfolio Manager 
Investment Experience: since 1987 
HighMark Tenure: since 2007 
Education: BA, University of California, Santa Barbara 
 
Randy Yurchak, CFA® 

Senior Portfolio Manager 
Investment Experience: since 2002 
HighMark Tenure: since 2017 
Education: MBA, Arizona State University; 
BS, University of Washington 
 
Asset Allocation Committee 
Number of Members: 16 
Average Years of Experience: 26 
Average Tenure (Years): 13 
 
Manager Review Group 
Number of Members: 7 
Average Years of Experience: 20 
Average Tenure (Years): 7 

The performance records shown represent size-weighted composites of tax exempt accounts that meet the following criteria: 
Composites are managed by HighMark’s HighMark Capital Advisors (HCA) with full investment authority according to the 
PARS Moderate active and passive objectives and do not have equity concentration of 25% or more in one common stock 
security. 
The adviser to the PARS portfolios is US Bank, and HighMark serves as sub-adviser to US Bank to manage these portfolios. 
US Bank may charge clients as much as 0.60% annual management fee based on a sliding scale. As of September 30, 2017, 
the blended rate is 0.58%. US Bank pays HighMark 60% of the annual management fee for assets sub-advised by HighMark 
under its sub-advisory agreement with US Bank. The 36 basis points paid to HighMark, as well as other expenses that may 
be incurred in the management of the portfolio, will reduce the portfolio returns. Assuming an investment for five years, a 5% 
annual total return, and an annual sub-advisory fee rate of 0.36% deducted from the assets at market at the end of each year, 
a 10 million initial value would grow to $12.54 million after fees (Net-of-Fees) and $12.76 million before fees (Gross-of-Fees). 
Additional information regarding the firm’s policies and procedures for calculating and reporting performance results is 
available upon request. In Q1 2010, the PARS Composite definition was changed from $750,000 minimum to no minimum. 
Performance results are calculated and presented in U.S. dollars and do not reflect the deduction of investment advisory 
fees, custody fees, or taxes but do reflect the deduction of trading expenses. Returns are calculated based on trade-date 
accounting.  
Blended benchmarks represent HighMark’s strategic allocations between equity, fixed income, and cash and are rebalanced 
monthly. Benchmark returns do not reflect the deduction of advisory fees or other expenses of investing but assumes the 
reinvestment of dividends and other earnings. An investor cannot invest directly in an index. The unmanaged S&P 500 Index 
is representative of the performance of large companies in the U.S. stock market. The MSCI EAFE Index is a free float-
adjusted market capitalization index designed to measure developed market equity performance, excluding the U.S. and 
Canada. The MSCI Emerging Markets Free Index is a free float-adjusted market capitalization index that is designed to 
measure equity market performance in the global emerging markets. The Russell Midcap Index measures the performance of 
the mid-cap segment of the U.S. equity universe. The Russell 2000 Index measures the performance of the small-cap 
segment of the U.S. equity universe. The US High Yield Master II Index tracks the performance of below investment grade 
U.S. dollar-denominated corporate bonds publicly issued in the U.S. domestic market. Wilshire REIT index measures U.S. 
publicly traded Real Estate Investment Trusts. The unmanaged Bloomberg Barclays Capital (BC) U.S. Aggregate Bond Index 
is generally representative of the U.S. taxable bond market as a whole. The Merrill Lynch (ML) 1-3 Year U.S. Corporate & 
Government Index tracks the bond performance of The ML U.S. Corporate & Government Index, with a remaining term to 
final maturity less than 3 years. The unmanaged Citigroup 1-Month Treasury Bill Index tracks the yield of the 1-month U.S. 
Treasury Bill. 
HighMark Capital Management, Inc.  (HighMark), an SEC-registered investment adviser, is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
MUFG Union Bank, N.A. (MUB). HighMark manages institutional separate account portfolios for a wide variety of for-profit 
and nonprofit organizations, public agencies, public and private retirement plans, and personal trusts of all sizes. It may also 
serve as sub-adviser for mutual funds, common trust funds, and collective investment funds. MUB, a subsidiary of MUFG 
Americas Holdings Corporation, provides certain services to HighMark and is compensated for these services. Past 
performance does not guarantee future results. Individual account management and construction will vary depending on 
each client’s investment needs and objectives. Investments employing HighMark strategies are NOT insured by the 
FDIC or by any other Federal Government Agency, are NOT Bank deposits, are NOT guaranteed by the Bank or any 
Bank affiliate, and MAY lose value, including possible loss of principal.  

350 California Street 
Suite 1600 
San Francisco, CA 94104 
800.582.4734 
www.highmarkcapital.com 

HOLDINGS 

STYLE 
Small Cap 

7.5% 

Interm-Term Bond 
39.1% 

Floating Rate Note 
1.5% Short-Term Bond 

6.3% 

Large Cap Core 
14.7% 

Large Cap Growth 
4.3% 

Mid Cap 
3.6% 

 

Intl Stocks 
12.5% 

Cash 
3.1% 

Large Cap Value 
6.0% 

Real Estate 
1.5% 

HighMark Plus (Active) Index Plus (Passive) 
Columbia Contrarian Core Z iShares Core S&P 500 ETF 
Vanguard Growth & Income Adm iShares S&P 500/Value 

Dodge & Cox Stock Fund iShares S&P 500/Growth 
Harbor Capital Appreciation iShares Russell Mid-Cap ETF 
T. Rowe Price Growth Stock Vanguard REIT ETF 
iShares Russell Mid-Cap ETF iShares Russell 2000 Value 

Vanguard REIT ETF iShares Russell 2000 Growth 
Undiscovered Managers Behavioral Value iShares MSCI EAFE 
T. Rowe Price New Horizons Vanguard FTSE Emerging Markets ETF 
Nationwide Bailard International Equities Vanguard Short-Term Invest-Grade Adm 
Dodge & Cox International Stock iShares Core U.S. Aggregate 
MFS International Growth I PowerShares Senior Loan 
Hartford Schroders Emerging Markets Eq First American Government Obligations Z 
Vanguard Short-Term Invest-Grade Adm 
PIMCO Total Return 
Prudential Total Return 
Nationwide HighMark Bond 
Eaton Vance Floating Rate & High Income 
First American Government Obligations Z 

Holdings are subject to change at the 
discretion of the investment manager. 
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ASSETS Amount
Cash in Bank 190,699.45
Investments 14,888,045.21
Accounts Receivable 45,930,249.06
Accounts Receivable - Other 120,956.52
Accrued Interest Receivable 44,128.19
Prepaids/Deposits 279,250.20
Leasehold Improvements 3,695,600.68
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 457,309.71
     Less:  Accum Depreciation (2,791,690.13)
Net OPEB Asset 483,546.00

              TOTAL ASSETS $63,298,094.89

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Accounts Payable 43,954,897.49
Accounts Payable - Other 480.77
Accrued Salaries and Benefits Payable 350,664.91
Other Liabilities 178,841.76
Unearned Revenue 1,714,185.93
          Total  Liabilities 46,199,070.86

Fund Balances
Restricted Fund Balances

Water Fund - T2C 973,481.11
          Total Restricted Fund Balances 973,481.11

Unrestricted Fund Balances
Designated Reserves

General Operations 3,199,175.74      
Grant & Project Cash Flow 1,500,000.00      
Election Expense 475,000.00         
Building Repair 350,407.45
OPEB 209,006.00
Total Designated Reserves 5,733,589.19

       GENERAL FUND 2,680,939.65      
       WEROC Capital 281,657.00         

       WEROC 144,717.31
          Total Unrestricted Fund Balances 8,840,903.15

Excess Revenue over Expenditures
     Operating Fund 7,045,829.64
     Other Funds 238,810.13
Total Fund Balance 17,099,024.03

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $63,298,094.89

Municipal Water District of Orange County
Combined Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2017
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Annual Budget
Month to Date Year to Date Budget % Used Encumbrance Remaining

REVENUES

Retail Connection Charge 0.00 7,435,834.00 7,435,834.00 100.00% 0.00 0.00
Ground Water Customer Charge 0.00 468,565.00 468,565.00 100.00% 0.00 0.00

Water rate revenues 0.00 7,904,399.00 7,904,399.00 100.00% 0.00 0.00

Interest Revenue 24,999.00 66,473.93 150,000.00 44.32% 0.00 83,526.07

Subtotal 24,999.00 7,970,872.93 8,054,399.00 98.96% 0.00 83,526.07

Choice Programs 0.00 1,094,256.07 1,176,618.00 93.00% 0.00 82,361.93
Miscellaneous Income 375.00 1,372.46 3,000.00 45.75% 0.00 1,627.54
School Contracts 0.00 0.00 70,000.00 0.00% 0.00 70,000.00
Transfer-In From Reserve 0.00 0.00 138,470.00 0.00% 0.00 138,470.00

Subtotal 375.00 1,095,628.53 1,388,088.00 78.93% 0.00 292,459.47

TOTAL REVENUES 25,374.00 9,066,501.46 9,442,487.00 96.02% 0.00 375,985.54

Municipal Water District of Orange County
Revenues and Expenditures Budget Comparative Report

General Fund
From July thru September 2017
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Annual Budget
Month to Date Year to Date Budget % Used Encumbrance Remaining

Municipal Water District of Orange County
Revenues and Expenditures Budget Comparative Report

General Fund
From July thru September 2017

EXPENSES
Salaries & Wages 273,081.39 841,308.69 3,571,210.00 23.56% 0.00 2,729,901.31
Salaries & Wages - Grant Recovery (2,403.18) (2,403.18) (23,279.00) 10.32% 0.00 (20,875.82)
Salaries & Wages - Recovery (327.60) (436.80) 0.00 0.00% 0.00 436.80
Directors' Compensation  16,122.45 52,610.10 243,197.00 21.63% 0.00 190,586.90
MWD Representation 9,616.90 30,830.65 138,969.00 22.19% 0.00 108,138.35
Employee Benefits 77,145.83 245,425.76 1,056,766.00 23.22% 0.00 811,340.24
Employee Benefits - Grant Recovery (477.64) (477.64) 0.00 0.00% 0.00 477.64
Employee Benefits - Recovery (62.40) (83.20) 0.00 0.00% 0.00 83.20
Director's Benefits 6,899.04 20,236.14 81,728.00 24.76% 0.00 61,491.86
Health Ins $'s for Retirees 4,287.76 12,704.80 59,554.00 21.33% 0.00 46,849.20
Training Expense 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00% 0.00 10,000.00
Tuition Reimbursement 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00% 0.00 5,000.00
Temporary Help Expense 0.00 4,775.18 5,000.00 95.50% 0.00 224.82

Personnel Expenses 383,882.55 1,204,490.50 5,148,145.00 23.40% 0.00 3,943,654.50
Engineering Expense 5,306.77 30,951.09 360,000.00 8.60% 106,587.43 222,461.48
Legal Expense   16,111.14 61,515.17 250,000.00 24.61% 188,484.83 0.00
Audit Expense 0.00 10,000.00 40,000.00 25.00% 9,000.00 21,000.00
Professional Services 48,312.02 128,059.82 1,539,809.00 8.32% 577,225.96 834,523.22

Professional Fees 69,729.93 230,526.08 2,189,809.00 10.53% 881,298.22 1,077,984.70
Conference-Staff 2,436.56 5,007.46 38,945.00 12.86% 0.00 33,937.54
Conference-Directors 510.00 3,433.00 23,700.00 14.49% 0.00 20,267.00
Travel & Accom.-Staff 2,870.65 8,858.40 95,600.00 9.27% 0.01 86,741.59
Travel & Accom.-Directors 376.96 3,242.96 49,850.00 6.51% 0.00 46,607.04

Travel & Conference 6,194.17 20,541.82 208,095.00 9.87% 0.01 187,553.17

Membership/Sponsorship 239.00 65,160.60 142,102.00 45.85% 0.00 76,941.40
CDR Support 10,950.64 10,950.64 48,803.00 22.44% 32,851.93 5,000.43

Dues & Memberships 11,189.64 76,111.24 190,905.00 39.87% 32,851.93 81,941.83

Business Expense 362.76 1,445.85 5,200.00 27.80% 0.00 3,754.15
Maintenance Office 5,410.27 22,383.08 123,500.00 18.12% 100,056.92 1,060.00
Building Repair & Maintenance 1,777.30 5,888.58 11,000.00 53.53% 4,511.42 600.00
Storage Rental & Equipment Lease 195.29 583.92 8,400.00 6.95% 4,416.08 3,400.00
Office Supplies 1,207.97 3,958.06 35,580.00 11.12% 3,198.67 28,423.27
Postage/Mail Delivery 524.81 1,768.20 10,500.00 16.84% 3,131.68 5,600.12
Subscriptions & Books 120.00 423.59 1,500.00 28.24% 0.00 1,076.41
Reproduction Expense 99.18 4,124.40 27,275.00 15.12% 2,734.88 20,415.72
Maintenance-Computers 0.00 878.08 10,000.00 8.78% 1,754.27 7,367.65
Software Purchase 1,829.03 5,646.29 44,260.00 12.76% 0.00 38,613.71
Software Support 8,099.80 17,766.41 48,894.00 36.34% 1,437.00 29,690.59
Computers and Equipment 0.00 8,706.36 33,050.00 26.34% 0.00 24,343.64
Automotive Expense 1,662.37 4,115.06 16,400.00 25.09% 0.00 12,284.94
Toll Road Charges 65.76 172.70 1,000.00 17.27% 0.00 827.30
Insurance Expense 8,852.34 26,572.73 110,250.00 24.10% 0.00 83,677.27
Utilities - Telephone 1,455.37 3,749.48 21,300.00 17.60% 0.00 17,550.52
Bank Fees 1,104.60 3,014.59 11,000.00 27.41% 0.00 7,985.41
Miscellaneous Expense 4,525.29 21,226.24 119,650.00 17.74% 0.00 98,423.76
MWDOC's Contrb. To WEROC 14,934.75 326,461.25 460,874.00 70.84% 0.00 134,412.75
Depreciation Expense 794.41 2,383.22 0.00 0.00% 0.00 (2,383.22)

Other Expenses 53,021.30 461,268.09 1,099,633.00 41.95% 121,240.92 517,123.99

MWDOC's Building Expense 14,827.00 14,827.00 356,400.00 4.16% 39,249.34 302,323.66
Capital Acquisition 12,907.09 12,907.09 249,500.00 5.17% 0.00 236,592.91

TOTAL EXPENSES 551,751.68 2,020,671.82 9,442,487.00 21.40% 1,074,640.42 6,347,174.76
NET INCOME (LOSS) (526,377.68) 7,045,829.64 0.00
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Annual Budget
Month to Date Year to Date Budget % Used Remaining

WATER REVENUES

Water Sales 15,703,087.50 62,904,283.60 154,733,881.00 40.65% 91,829,597.40
Readiness to Serve Charge 863,419.18 2,590,257.54 10,397,278.00 24.91% 7,807,020.46
Capacity Charge CCF 295,400.00 886,200.00 3,544,800.00 25.00% 2,658,600.00
SCP/SAC Pipeline Surcharge 31,378.74 96,346.02 423,000.00 22.78% 326,653.98
Interest 795.52 2,534.79 9,400.00 26.97% 6,865.21

TOTAL WATER REVENUES 16,894,080.94 66,479,621.95 169,108,359.00 39.31% 102,628,737.05

WATER PURCHASES

Water Sales 15,703,087.50 62,904,283.60 154,733,881.00 40.65% 91,829,597.40
Readiness to Serve Charge 863,419.18 2,590,257.54 10,397,278.00 24.91% 7,807,020.46
Capacity Charge CCF 295,400.00 886,200.00 3,544,800.00 25.00% 2,658,600.00
SCP/SAC Pipeline Surcharge 31,378.74 96,346.02 423,000.00 22.78% 326,653.98

TOTAL WATER PURCHASES 16,893,285.42 66,477,087.16 169,098,959.00 39.31% 102,621,871.84

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER
 EXPENDITURES 795.52 2,534.79 9,400.00

Municipal Water District of Orange County
Revenues and Expenditures Budget Comparative Report

Water Fund
From July thru September 2017
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Year to Date Annual
Actual Budget % Used

Spray To Drip Conversion
Revenues 16,666.37 257,371.00 6.48%
Expenses 16,739.04 257,371.00 6.50%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (72.67) 0.00

Member Agency Administered Passthru
Revenues 0.00 7,200.00 0.00%
Expenses 0.00 7,200.00 0.00%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 0.00 0.00

ULFT Rebate Program
Revenues 8,250.64       95,000.00 8.68%
Expenses 9,450.64       95,000.00 9.95%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (1,200.00) 0.00

HECW Rebate Program
Revenues 68,435.00 340,000.00 20.13%
Expenses 86,175.39 340,000.00 25.35%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (17,740.39) 0.00

CII Rebate Program
Revenues 109,230.00 345,000.00 31.66%
Expenses 109,230.00   345,000.00 31.66%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 0.00 0.00

Turf Removal Program
Revenues 149,525.11 2,552,302.00 5.86%
Expenses 219,293.75   2,552,302.00 8.59%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (69,768.64)    0.00

Comprehensive Landscape (CLWUE)
Revenues 44,823.80 520,000.00 8.62%
Expenses 49,841.43     520,000.00 9.58%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (5,017.63)      0.00

CII, Large Landscape, Performance (OWOW)
Revenues 0.00 62,722.00 0.00%
Expenses 2,147.00       62,722.00 3.42%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (2,147.00)      0.00

WUE Projects
Revenues 396,930.92 4,179,595.00 9.50%
Expenses 492,877.25 4,179,595.00 11.79%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (95,946.33)    0.00

WEROC
Revenues 505,677.25 640,933.00 78.90%
Expenses 102,829.80   640,933.00 16.04%
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 402,847.45   0.00

Municipal Water District of Orange County
WUE Revenues and Expenditures (Actuals vs Budget)

From July thru September 2017
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DATE: November 08, 2017 

Memorandum 

 
 
TO: Administrative & Finance Committee 

 

(Directors Thomas, Barbre, Finnegan) 
 

FROM: Robert Hunter 
 

SUBJECT: Quarter ending September 2017 YTD Financials Actual versus Budget 
 
 
 
The following reports are attached: 

 
• Revenues and Expenditures Actual versus Budget for the General Fund 
• Revenues and Expenditures Actual versus Budget Detailed Comparative Report for 

the General Fund 
• Revenues and Expenditures Actual versus Budget for Water Funds 
• Revenues and Expenditures Actual versus Budget for Other Funds 
• Revenues and Expenditures Actual versus Budget for the Water Use Efficiency 

Projects 
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GENERAL FUND

YTD Actual
Annual
Budget % Used

REVENUES

Water Rate revenues:
Retail Connection Charge 7,436         7,436         100.0%
Ground Water Customer Charge 469            469            100.0%

Subtotal 7,904         7,904         100.0%

Other Revenues:
Interest income (1) 66              150            44.3%
Choice Programs 

(2) 1,094 1,177         93.0%
School Contracts (3) 0 70              0.0%
Other income 1                3                45.7%
Transfer in from Reserve (4) 0 138            0.0%

Subtotal 1,162         1,538         75.6%

9,067         9,443         96.0%

EXPENSES

Personal Expenses (incl. Dir.) 1,204         5,148         23.4%
Professional services (5) 138            1,580         8.7%
Outside engineering (6) 31              360            8.6%
Legal expense 62              250            24.6%
Travel & Conference (7) 21              208            9.9%
Dues and memberships 

(8) 76              191            39.9%
General & Admin expense (9) 461            1,100         41.9%
Building repair & expense (10) 15 356            4.2%
Capital acquisition (not including building repairs) (11) 13 250            5.2%

2,021         9,442         21.4%

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES 7,046         

RESERVE FUND

Beginning Balance 4,690         
Nov 2016 - excess from FY 15-16 General Fund 560            
Net OPEB Asset 484            

5,734         

(1) Interest Income higher due to raising yields and temporary fee reduction at OCIP.

(2) Choice programs billed in September.

(3) School Contracts invoiced after September.

(4) Transfer in from Reserves to cover budgeted expenses for FY 2017-18.

(5) Professional Services - Projects in process.

(6) Engineering projects in process.

(7) Travel & Conference scheduled throughout the fiscal year.

(8) Dues and memberships are primarily paid in the beginning of the year.

(9) General & Admin expense higher due to capital contribution to WEROC.

(10) Building repair & expense scheduled throughout the fiscal year.

(11) Capital acquisition being performed throughout the fiscal year.

TOTAL RESERVE FUND

TOTAL EXPENSES

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY
Revenues and Expenditures Actual versus Budget Summary Report

Fiscal Year to Date ending September 2017 (Unaudited)
( $000 Omitted )

General Fund and Reserve Fund

TOTAL REVENUES
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YTD ACTUAL ANNUAL 
BUDGET % Used

Retail Connection Charge 7,435,834 7,435,834 100.00%
Ground Water Customer Charge 468,565 468,565 100.00%

Water Rate Revenues 7,904,399 7,904,399 100.00%

Choice Programs 1,094,256 1,176,618 93.00%
Interest Revenue 66,474 150,000 44.32%
Miscellaneous Income 1,372 3,000 45.75%
School Contracts 0 70,000 0.00%
Transfer in from Reserve 0 138,470          0.00%

Other Revenues 1,162,102 1,538,088 75.56%

9,066,501 9,442,487 96.02%

Salaries & Wages 841,309             3,571,210       23.56%
       less Recovery's (2,840)                (23,279)           12.20%
Directors' Compensation 52,610               243,197          21.63%
MWD Representation 30,831               138,969          22.19%
Employee Benefits 245,426             1,056,766       23.22%
       less Recovery's (561)                   0 0.00%
Directors Benefits 20,236               81,728            24.76%
Health Insurances for Retirees 12,705               59,554            21.33%
Training Expense 0 10,000            0.00%
Tuition Reimbursement 0 5,000              0.00%
Temporary Help Expense 4,775                 5,000 0.00%

Personnel Expenses 1,204,490          5,148,145       23.40%

Engineering Expense 30,951               360,000          8.60%
Legal Expense 61,515               250,000          24.61%
Audit Expense 10,000               40,000            25.00%
Professional Services 128,060             1,539,809       8.32%

Professional Fees 230,526             2,189,809       10.53%

Conference-Staff 5,007                 38,945            12.86%
Conference-Directors 3,433                 23,700            14.49%
Travel & Accom.-Staff 8,858                 95,600            9.27%
Travel & Accom.-Directors 3,243                 49,850            6.51%

Travel & Conference 20,542               208,095          9.87%

Membership/Sponsorship 65,161               142,102          45.85%
CDR Support 10,951               48,803            22.44%

Dues & Memberships 76,111               190,905          39.87%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Municipal Water District of Orange County
Revenues and Expenditures Actual vs Budget Line Item Report

Fiscal Year to Date ending September 2017 (Unaudited)
General Fund

REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES 
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YTD ACTUAL ANNUAL 
BUDGET % Used

Municipal Water District of Orange County
Revenues and Expenditures Actual vs Budget Line Item Report

Fiscal Year to Date ending September 2017 (Unaudited)
General Fund

Business Expense 1,446                 5,200              27.80%
Maintenance Office 22,383               123,500          18.12%
Building Repair & Maintenance 5,889                 11,000 53.53%
Storage Rental & Equipment Lease 584                    8,400              6.95%
Office Supplies 3,958                 35,580            11.12%
Postage/Mail Delivery 1,768                 10,500            16.84%
Subscriptions & Books 424                    1,500              28.24%
Reproduction Expense 4,124                 27,275            15.12%
Maintenance-Computers 878                    10,000            8.78%
Software Purchase 5,646                 44,260            12.76%
Software Support 17,766               48,894            36.34%
Computers and Equipment 8,706                 33,050            26.34%
Automotive Expense 4,115                 16,400            25.09%
Toll Road Charges 173                    1,000              17.27%
Insurance Expense 26,573               110,250          24.10%
Utilities - Telephone 3,749                 21,300            17.60%
Bank Fees 3,015                 11,000            27.41%
Miscellaneous Expense 21,226               119,650          17.74%
MWDOC's Contribution To WEROC 326,461             460,874          70.84%
Depreciation Expense 2,383                 0 0.00%
MWDOC Building Expense 14,827 356,400          4.16%
Capital Acquisition 12,907 249,500          5.17%

Other Expenses 489,002             1,705,533       28.67%

2,020,672          9,442,487       21.40%

7,045,830 0

TOTAL EXPENSES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES
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YTD Actual Annual Budget Balance

Water Revenues

Water Sales 62,904,284      154,733,881    (91,829,597)     
Ready to Serve Charge 2,590,258        10,397,278      (7,807,020)       
Capacity Charge Flat Rate 886,200           3,544,800        (2,658,600)       
SCP/SAC Pipeline Surcharge 96,346             423,000           (326,654)          
Interest 2,535               9,400               (6,865)              

Total Water Revenues 66,479,622      169,108,359    (102,628,737)   

Water Purchases

Water Sales 62,904,284      154,733,881    (91,829,597)     
Ready to Serve Charge 2,590,258        10,397,278      (7,807,020)       
Capacity Charge 886,200           3,544,800        (2,658,600)       
SCP/SAC Pipeline Surcharge 96,346             423,000           (326,654)          

Total Water Purchases 66,477,087      169,098,959    (102,621,872)   

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 2,535               9,400               (6,865)              

           

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Fiscal Year to Date ending September 2017 (Unaudited)
Water Funds
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YTD Actual Annual Budget Balance

WEROC
Revenues 505,677           640,933           (135,256)          
Expenditures 102,830           640,933           (538,103)          

402,847           0 402,847           

WUE Projects (details on next page)
Revenues 396,931           4,179,595        (3,782,664)       
Expenditures 492,877           4,179,595        (3,686,718)       

(95,946)            0 (95,946)            

Footnote:
1) The excess of expense over revenue is waiting for reimbursement.
2) USBR (Federal) Grant is billed in October and April with funds being received one month later.
3) DWR is billed quarterly to county and takes a few months to a year to receive funds.

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY
Revenues and Expenditures Actual versus Budget

Fiscal Year to Date ending September 2017 (Unaudited)
Other Funds
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Actual
Variance 

%
Fiscal Year

Budget
% of 

Budget

Projected 
Final

FY Budget
Spray to Drip Conversion
Revenues 16,666               257,371             6.48% 257,371
Expenditures 16,739               257,371             6.50% 257,371

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (73)                     0% 0

Budget Variance: Actual numbers and percentages (%) represent 3 months of a 12 month program. As of now, on target.

Member Agency Administered Pass thru
Revenues 0 7,200                 0.00% 7,200
Expenditures 0 7,200                 0.00% 7,200

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 0 0% 0

ULFT Rebate Program
Revenues 8,251                 95,000               8.68% 95,000
Expenditures 9,451                 95,000               9.95% 95,000

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (1,200) -15% 0

HECW Rebate Program
Revenues 68,435               340,000             20.13% 340,000
Expenditures 86,175               340,000             25.35% 340,000

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (17,740)              -26% 0

Budget Variance: Actual numbers and percentages (%) represent 3 months of a 12 month program. As of now, on target.

Budget Variance:  Agency's due to start their programs later next year.

Budget Variance:  Actual numbers and percentages (%) represent 3 months of a 12 month program. As of now, on target.

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY
Revenues and Expenditures Actual versus Budget

Fiscal Year to Date ending September 2017 (Unaudited)
Water Use Efficiency Projects

Actual Variance: 

Actual Variance: 

Actual Variance: Payment to Agencies out ahead of Metropolitan reimbursements

Actual Variance: This tracks agency toilet programs, agencies slow to implement.

Notes: 
[1] Variance from Revenues to Expenses. When greater than 5%, an explanation is provided.
[2] Fiscal year budget versus Actual
[3] With each quarterly report the projected fiscal year end budget may be re-adjusted.
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Actual
Variance 

%
Fiscal Year

Budget
% of 

Budget

Projected 
Final

FY Budget

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY
Revenues and Expenditures Actual versus Budget

Fiscal Year to Date ending September 2017 (Unaudited)
Water Use Efficiency Projects

CII Rebate Program
Revenues 109,230             345,000 31.66% 345,000
Expenditures 109,230 345,000 31.66% 345,000

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 0 0% 0

Budget Variance: Actual numbers and percentages (%) represent 3 months of a 12 month program. As of now, on target.

Turf Removal Program
Revenues 149,525             2,552,302          5.86% 2,552,302
Expenditures 219,294             2,552,302          8.59% 2,552,302

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (69,769)              -47% 0

Comprehensive Landscape (CLWUE)
Revenues 44,824               520,000             8.62% 520,000
Expenditures 49,841               520,000             9.58% 520,000

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (5,018)                -11% 0

CII, Large Landscape, Performance (OWOW)
Revenues 0 62,722               0.00% 62,722
Expenditures 2,147                 62,722               3.42% 62,722

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (2,147)                0% 0

Budget Variance: Actual numbers and percentages (%) represent 3 months of a 12 month program. As of now, on target.

Actual Variance: Revenues slightly behind expenses due to lag in payment from submitted reports.

Budget Variance: Actual numbers and percentages (%) represent 3 months of a 12 month program. As of now, on target.

Budget Variance: Actual numbers and percentages (%) represent 3 months of a 12 month program. As of now, on target.

Actual Variance: 

Actual Variance: Payment to Program Participants ahead of Grant and Metropolitan reimbursements

Actual Variance: Expenses are monthly, Grant reimbursement is quarterly. Grant reprots submitted on time.

Notes: 
[1] Variance from Revenues to Expenses. When greater than 5%, an explanation is provided.
[2] Fiscal year budget versus Actual
[3] With each quarterly report the projected fiscal year end budget may be re-adjusted.
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October 26, 2017 
 
 
Honorable Members of the Board of Directors 
Municipal Water District of Orange County 
 
 
We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the financial statements of Municipal Water 
District of Orange County (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017. This report 
summarizes certain matters required by professional standards to be communicated to you in your 
oversight responsibility for the District’s financial reporting process. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, the Administration and 
Finance Committee and management, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. It will be our pleasure to respond to any questions you have about this 
report. We appreciate the opportunity to continue to be of service to the District. 
 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
Vasquez & Company LLP 
 
 

 
Margaret McBride  
Partner 
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Required Communications 
 
Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Auditor’s Communication With Those Charged 
With Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the auditor 
and those charged with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the following summarizes our 
responsibilities regarding the financial statement audit as well as observations arising from our audit that 
are significant and relevant to your responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process. 
 
Area  Comments 
   

Our Responsibilities With 
Regard to the Financial 
Statement Audit 

 Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States have been 
described to you in our arrangement letter dated May 2, 2017. Our 
audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or
those charged with governance of their responsibilities, which are also 
described in that letter. 

Overview of the Planned 
Scope and Timing of the 
Financial Statement Audit 

 We have issued a separate communication dated May 9, 2017 
regarding the planned scope and timing of our audit and have
discussed with you our identification of, and planned audit response 
to, significant risks of material misstatement.  

Accounting Policies and 
Practices 

 Management has the ultimate responsibility for the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used by the District. The District did not adopt 
any significant new accounting policies, nor have there been any
changes in existing significant accounting policies during the current
period. 

Significant or Unusual 
Transactions 

 We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions or 
significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Going Concern  The financial statements were prepared on the assumption that the
District will continue as a going concern.  

Audit Adjustments  There were no audit adjustments proposed by us and recorded by the 
District during the audit. 

Uncorrected Misstatements  We are not aware of any uncorrected misstatements other than
misstatements that are clearly trivial. 

Disagreements With 
Management 

 We encountered no disagreements with management over the
application of significant accounting principles, the basis for
management’s judgments on any significant matters, the scope of the
audit, or significant disclosures to be included in the financial
statements. 

Significant Issues Discussed 
With Management 

 No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed or the
subject of correspondence with management. 
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Area  Comments 
   

Significant Difficulties 
Encountered in Performing 
the Audit 

Significant Written 
Communications Between 
Management and Our Firm 

 We did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with
management during the audit. 

 
Copies of material written communications between our firm and the 
management of the District, including the representation letter
provided to us by management, are attached. 

 

Page 68 of 177



Page 69 of 177



Page 70 of 177



Page 71 of 177



Page 72 of 177



FINANCIAL 
REPORT

F O R  T H E  Y E A R  E N D E D  

J U N E  3 0 ,  2 0 1 7  

Page 73 of 177



 

 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 
 Page 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report ........................................................................................... 1 - 2 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) .................................................... 3 - 9 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 

 
 Statement of Net Position ..................................................................................... 10 - 11 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 

Changes in Net Position ........................................................................................... 12 
 Statement of Cash Flows ...................................................................................... 13 - 14 
 Notes to Basic Financial Statements .................................................................... 15 - 32 

 
 
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited): 
 
 Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan 

Schedule of Funding Progress ................................................................................. 33 
 Cost Sharing Retirement Plan 

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability.............. 34 
 Cost Sharing Retirement Plan 

Schedule of Contributions ......................................................................................... 35 
 

 
 

 
 
  

Page 74 of 177



INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' 
REPORT

Page 75 of 177



 

 

Report of Independent Auditors  
 
 
The Honorable Members of the Board of Directors 
Municipal Water District of Orange County  
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Municipal Water District of Orange 
County (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the District as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in its net position and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
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Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Funding Progress for the Other Post-
Employment Benefit Plan, Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
and Schedule of Contributions for the Cost Sharing Retirement Plan on pages 3 through 9 and 33 
through 35 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Prior Year Comparative Information 
 
The financial statements of the District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, were audited by 
other auditors, whose report, dated November 2, 2016, expressed an unmodified opinion on those 
statements.  The financial statements include summarized prior year comparative information.  Such 
information does not include all of the information required to constitute a presentation in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Accordingly, such 
information should be read in conjunction with the District’s financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2016, from which such summarized information was derived. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 
26, 2017 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
Los Angeles, California 
October 26, 2017 
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The following is a brief discussion of the Municipal Water District of Orange County’s (District) 
activities and financial performance for the year ended June 30, 2017.  Please read in conjunction 
with the District’s basic financial statements and accompanying notes which follow this section. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 The District’s revenues were $163.4 million in FY 2016-17, compared to $183.6 million in the 
prior fiscal year, an 11.0% decrease. 
 

 The District’s expenses were $162.3 million in FY 2016-17, compared to $181.7 million in the 
prior fiscal year, a 10.7% decrease. 
 

 The District’s assets at June 30, 2017 were $46.7 million, a 7.3% decrease compared to total 
assets of $50.4 million at June 30, 2016. 
 

 The District’s liabilities at June 30, 2017 were $38.7 million, a 10.0% decrease compared to 
total liabilities of $43.0 million at June 30, 2016. 
 

 The District’s net position at June 30, 2017 was $8.6 million, a 15.0% increase compared to 
net position of $7.5 million at June 30, 2016. 

 
 
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various 
financial statements.  Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the 
measurement focus applied.  The accompanying financial statements are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus, and the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
Under the economic resources measurement focus all assets, deferred inflows and outflows of 
resources, and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with these activities are included 
on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position.  Under the 
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when 
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The District’s financial statements, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP), offer key, high-level financial information about District activities during the 
reporting period.  The financial statements of the District consist of three interrelated statements 
designed to provide the reader with relevant information on the District’s financial condition and 
operating results.  These statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the 
District’s activities utilizing the full accrual basis of accounting. 
 
The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District’s assets and deferred outflows of resources, 
less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference being reported as Net 
Position. It also provides the basis for computing rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the 
District, and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.   
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All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  This statement measures the District’s operations over the 
past year and can be used to determine whether the District has successfully recovered all its 
projected costs through its rates and other service related charges. 
 
The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows which presents information 
about the District’s cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period classified as cash 
receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, and investing, non-
capital financing, and capital and related financing activities.  This statement also provides 
comparative information on the sources and uses of the District’s cash during the reporting period. 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT 
 
One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is:  “Is the District, as a 
whole, financially better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?”  The Statement of Net 
Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information 
about the District’s activities in a way that will help answer this question.  These two statements 
report the net position of the District and changes in them.  You can think of the District’s net position 
(the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities plus deferred 
inflows of resources) as one way to measure financial health or financial position.  Over time, 
increases or decreases in the District’s Net Position are one indicator of whether its financial health 
is improving or deteriorating.  However, you will need to consider other non-financial factors, such as 
changes in economic conditions, population growth, changes in rates and charges and new or 
changed government legislation or accounting standards. 
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 
Net position is the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities plus 
deferred inflows of resources, and may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position. The following is a summary of the District’s Statement of Net Position. 
 

Table 1 
Condensed Statements of Net Position 

(In thousands of dollars) 
June 30: 

 

2017  2016  Variance 

 Total 
Percent 
Change 

        
Current Restricted Assets $   3,160  $   4,783   $ (1,623)       (33.9%) 
Current Unrestricted Assets    41,664      44,264       (2,600)         (5.9%) 
Capital Assets      1,364        1,209           155        12.8% 
Other Assets         483           117           366      312.8% 

Total Assets    46,671      50,373        (3,702)   
       

(7.3%) 
        
        

Deferred Outflows of Resources        890         454  436      96.0% 
        

Liabilities Payable from Restricted        
Current Assets      2,046        3,719        (1,673)   (45.0%)

Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted        
Current Assets    34,814      37,935        (3,121)   (8.2%)

Noncurrent Unrestricted Liabilities       1,871        1,377            494  35.9% 
Total Liabilities    38,731      43,031        (4,300)     (10.0%)

        
Deferred Inflows of Resources 231  320  (89)   (27.8%)

        
        

Net Position:        
Net Investment in Capital Assets      1,364        1,209           155   12.8% 
Restricted for Trustee Activities      1,114        1,064             50   4.7% 
Unrestricted      6,121        5,202           919   17.7% 

Total Net Position  $  8,599    $  7,475    $   1,124   15.0% 
 
The decreases in Restricted Assets and Liabilities were caused by the following: 
 

 Both Current Restricted and Unrestricted Assets and Liabilities Payable from Restricted and 
Unrestricted Current Assets are lower due to the Turf Removal Program having lower costs 
due to lower number of rebates this fiscal year.   
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
 
While the Statement of Net Position shows the financial position at year-end, the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position provides information as to the nature and 
source of these changes in Net Position.  The District reported an increase in net position of $1,124 
thousand for the year ended June 30, 2017, as compared to an increase of $1,872 thousand for the 
year ended June 30, 2016.  The following is a summary of the change in the District’s net position. 

 

 
 

The primary change in revenue and expense accounts was caused by the lower level of rebates 
paid and reimbursed through the Turf Removal Program. 

 
  

FY 2017 FY 2016 Variance

Total
Percent
Change

Operating Revenues 159,287$        154,568$        4,719$        3.1%          
Special Projects Revenue 3,927             28,674           (24,747)$      (86.3%)       
Nonoperating Revenues 199                341                (142)            (41.6%)       

Total Revenues 163,413          183,583          (20,170)       (11.0%)       

Operating Expense 158,214          152,903          5,311          3.5%          
Special Projects Expense 3,927             28,674           (24,747)       (86.3%)       
Depreciation Expense 148                134                14               10.4%        

Total Expenses 162,289          181,711          (19,422)       (10.7%)       

Change in Net Position 1,124             1,872             (748)            (40.0%)       

Beginning Net Position 7,475             5,603             1,872          33.4%        
Ending Net Position 8,599$           7,475$           1,124$        15.0%        

TABLE 2
Condensed Statements of Revenues

(In thousands of dollars)
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
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CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
The following is a summary of the District’s capital assets at June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016. 

 
Table 3 

Capital Assets 
(In thousands of dollars) 

June 30: 

 2017 2016 Variance  

Total 
Percent 
Change 

     
Leasehold Improvements $        3,696 $       3,415 $       281  8.2% 
Furniture & Fixtures         457 448 9    2.0% 

Subtotal 4,153 3,863 290  7.5% 
      
Less Accumulated Depreciation (2,789) (2,653) (136)  5.1% 
Net Capital Assets $       1,364 $       1,210 $       154  12.7%

 
 
The District refurbished five offices, remodeled a hallway, purchased carpet, designed entryway 
displays and contributed to an upgrade and remodel of the HVAC and the entry way remodel of the 
common area shared with Orange County Water District. Additional information regarding capital 
assets can be found in Notes 1 and 4 of the notes to financial statements. 
 
 
DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
The District had no debt outstanding as of June 30, 2017.  No new long-term debt was incurred in 
the year ended June 30, 2017, and the District does not plan to issue new debt in the year ending 
June 30, 2018. 
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BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The District is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of seven elected members.  The Board 
adopts an annual appropriated budget prior to the start of the fiscal year.  The Budget may be 
revised by Board action during the fiscal year.  All amendments to the budget, or transfers of 
operating budget appropriations to or from reserve accounts, require Board notification. The General 
Manager is authorized to transfer budget amounts within programs. The legal level of budgetary 
control is at the total fund level. An actual vs. budget comparison statement for FY 2016-17 is 
presented in Table 4 to demonstrate compliance with the adopted budget. 
 

 
The variances on the budget to actual are as follows: 
 

 Revenues from Operations were $10.2 million more than budget due to an increase in water 
sales. 

 
 Expenses from Cost of Water purchased were $11.1 million higher than budget due to 

increase in water sales. 
 

 Other Operating expenses were $2.6 million lower due to projects taking longer which 
reduced engineering expense by $300 thousand, professional services by $1.5 million, and 
building expense by $210 thousand. In addition two open positions were staffed halfway 
through the year which reduced salaries and benefits by $313 thousand. Also, our 
anticipated legal expenses were less by $164 thousand and miscellaneous expense by $111 
thousand. 

  

Actual Budget Variance

Total
Percent
Change

Revenues:
From Operations 163,214$        152,973$        10,241$    6.7%          
Nonoperating Revenues 199                131                68            51.9%        

Total Revenues 163,413          153,104         10,309      6.7%          

Expenses:
From Operations

Cost of Water 150,877          139,751         (11,126)     (8.0%)         
Other Operating 11,264           13,877           2,613        18.8%        
Depreciation 148                135                (13)           (9.6%)         

Total Expenses 162,289          153,763         (8,526)       (5.5%)         

Change In Net Assets 1,124$           (659)$             1,783$      (270.6%)      

TABLE 4
FY 2017 Actual vs FY 2017 Budget

(In thousands of dollars)
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES 
 
The District’s Board of Directors and management considered many factors during preparation and 
approval of the annual budget for FY 2017-18.  The budgeted operating expenses total $178.5 
million and operating and non-operating revenues total $178.4 million. 
 
Historically, the District has recouped the cost of water purchased from the resale of imported water 
to the District’s 28 water agencies located in Orange County.  In addition MWDOC has charged both 
a per acre-foot surcharge and a per retail meter charge to cover its operating budget.  In past 
history, the District’s operating revenue has been approximately 65% from per retail connection 
charges, and 35% from per acre-foot charges.  Beginning in 2011-12, MWDOC began transitioning 
from the two-component rate structure to one involving only a single component.  Over a five year 
period, ending in 2015-16, MWDOC had been transitioning from a water rate structure involving a 
per acre-foot charge and a fixed per retail meter charge to a 100% on the per retail meter charge. 
Beginning FY 2016-17 MWDOC has established two classes of customers, a retail meter and a 
groundwater customer. The District’s budget is now allocated between retail meter customer and 
groundwater customer. In addition MWDOC’s agencies will also pay for the resale cost of imported 
water. 
 
 
CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is intended to provide the Board of Directors, customers, taxpayers, creditors, 
and other interested parties with a general overview of the District’s financial operations and 
condition at the year ended June 30, 2017, and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the 
funds it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, you may 
contact the Municipal Water District of Orange County, Finance Dept., at 18700 Ward Street, 
Fountain Valley, CA 92708, (714) 963-3058, www.mwdoc.com.  
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2017 2016
ASSETS

Current Assets:

Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) 901,769$              2,949,837$        
Accounts Receivable Other 2,254,756             1,830,906 
Accrued Interest Receivable 3,038                     1,887 

Total Restricted Assets 3,159,563             4,782,630          

Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) 5,936,806             5,169,438          
Investments (Note 2) 3,012,987             3,144,608          
Accounts Receivable:

Water Sales 32,368,203           31,613,865        
Other 138,348                4,159,609          

Accrued Interest Receivable 31,259                   36,428               
Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 176,431                139,782             

Total Unrestricted Assets 41,664,034           44,263,730        

Total Current Assets 44,823,597           49,046,360        

Noncurrent Assets:

Unrestricted Assets:
Capital Assets, Net (Note 4) 1,363,604             1,209,464          
Net Other Post Employment Benefits 

(OPEB) Asset (Note 6) 483,546                117,085             

Total Noncurrent Assets 1,847,150             1,326,549          

TOTAL ASSETS 46,670,747           50,372,909        

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Amount Related to Pensions (Note 8) 890,291                453,547             

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 890,291                453,547             

(with comparative data as of June 30, 2016)
June 30, 2017

Statement of Net Position
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY
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(with the comparative data as of June 30, 2016)

2017 2016
LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities:

Payable from Restricted Assets
Accrued Liabilities 331,323                1,637,376          
Advances from Participants 1,714,186             1,967,473          
Unearned Revenue -                        109,305 
Due to Participants -                        4,823 

Total Payable from Restricted Assets 2,045,509             3,718,977          

Unrestricted Liabilities:
Accounts Payable, Metropolitan Water 
 District of Southern California 33,029,534           35,825,894        
Accrued Liabilities 1,784,818             2,109,579          

Total Unrestricted Liabilities 34,814,352           37,935,473        
Total Current Liabilities 36,859,861           41,654,450        

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Unrestricted Liabilities:
Net Pension Liability (Note 8) 1,871,472             1,376,955          

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,871,472             1,376,955          

TOTAL LIABILITIES 38,731,333           43,031,405        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Amount Related to Pensions (Note 8) 231,079                319,906             

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 231,079                319,906             

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,363,604             1,209,464          
Restricted 1,114,054             1,063,653          
Unrestricted 6,120,968             5,202,028          

TOTAL NET POSITION 8,598,626$           7,475,145$        

Statement of Net Position (Continued)
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY

June 30, 2017
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(with comparative data for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)

2017 2016
Operating Revenues:

Water Sales 159,287,030$       154,567,913$    
Special Projects Revenue 3,093,169             26,801,114        
Federal Grant Revenue 450,748                556,037             
State Grant Revenue 382,823                1,317,104          

Total Operating Revenues 163,213,770         183,242,168      

Operating Expenses:
Cost of Water Sold 150,877,118         146,210,635      
Salaries and Employee Benefits 4,256,280             3,861,895          
General and Administrative 3,080,916             2,830,610          
Special Project Expenses 3,926,740             28,674,255        
Depreciation 148,020                133,911             

Total Operating Expenses 162,289,074         181,711,306      

Operating Income 924,696                1,530,862          

Nonoperating Revenues:
Investment Income 147,183                179,964             
Other Income 51,602                   161,396             

Total Nonoperating Revenues 198,785                341,360             

Change in Net Position 1,123,481             1,872,222          

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,475,145             5,602,923          

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 8,598,626$           7,475,145$        

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 12 Page 89 of 177



(with comparative data for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)

2017 2016
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash Received from Member Agencies-Water Deliveries 158,532,692$         149,363,866$   
Cash Payments to Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (153,673,478)          (139,705,039)    
Cash Payments for Salaries and Employee Benefits (4,653,795)              (4,181,548)        
Cash Payments for General and Administrative Expenses (3,442,326)              (351,108)           
Cash Received from Special projects 6,108,793                28,292,093        
Cash Payments for Special Projects (4,180,027)              (27,829,947)      
Other income 51,602                     161,396             

Net Cash (Used) Provided by Operating Activities (1,256,539)              5,749,714          

Cash Flows from Non-capital and Related Financing Activities:
(Proceeds from)/Payments to Revised Percentage of Investment Participants (4,823)                      77                      

Net Cash Provided by Non-capital and Related Financing Activities (4,823)                      77                      

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition of Capital Assets (302,160)                 (414,132)           

Net Cash used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (302,160)                 (414,132)           

Cash Flows from Investment Activities:
Investment Income 147,183                   179,964             
Investments Matured/(Purchased) 135,639                   (36,112)             

Net Cash Provided by Investment Activities 282,822                   143,852             

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,280,700)              5,479,511          
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 8,119,275                2,639,764          

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 6,838,575$              8,119,275$        

Financial Statement Presentation: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Restricted) 901,769$                 2,949,837$        
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Unrestricted) 5,936,806                5,169,438          

Totals 6,838,575$              8,119,275$        

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 13 Page 90 of 177



MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
(with comparative data for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)

2017 2016
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) 
for Operating Activities
Operating Income 924,696$                 1,530,862$        

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) for
Operating Activites:

Depreciation 148,020                   133,911             
Pension Expense -                               (74,857)             
Other Income 51,602                     161,396             
Change in Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase) in accounts receivable - water sales (754,338)                 (5,204,047)        
Decrease in accounts receivable - other 4,021,261                1,463,245          
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits and prepaid expenses (36,649)                   16,619               
(Increase) in OPEB asset (366,461)                 (24,279)             
(Increase) in accounts receivable - special projects (423,850)                 (430,534)           
(Increase) in deferred outflows - pension related (436,744)                 (220,517)           
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued and other liabilities (324,761)                 999,639             
Increase/(Decrease) in restricted accrued liabilities (1,306,053)              1,118,163          
Increase/(Decrease) in advances from participants (253,287)                 844,307             
(Decrease) in unearned revenue for special projects (109,305)                 (1,069,790)        
Increase/(Decrease) in accounts payable to 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (2,796,360)              6,505,597          
Increase in net pension liability 494,517                   -                         
(Decrease) in deferred inflows - pension related (88,827)                   -                         

Total Adjustments (2,181,235)              4,218,852          

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Operating Activities (1,256,539)$            5,749,714$        

Noncash investing activities:
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments (44,012)$                 32,281$             

Total noncash investing activities (44,012)$                 32,281$             
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(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Reporting Entity 
 

The Municipal Water District of Orange County (the District) was formed as a municipal water 
district on January 11, 1951 under the Municipal Water District Act of 1911.  The District is a wholesale 
water supplier and resource planning agency that serves all of Orange County through 28 cities and 
water agencies (except the Cities of Anaheim, Fullerton, and Santa Ana which are independent member 
agencies of Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan).  As a public agency 
member of Metropolitan, the District purchases imported water from Metropolitan and provides water to 
the District’s 28 member agencies, which provide retail or wholesale water services to approximately 
2.3 million residents within the District’s service area of approximately 600 square miles.  The District’s 
primary sources of water from Metropolitan are the California State Water Project (SWP) and the 
Colorado River Aqueduct. 

 
The District is an independent special district of the State of California governed by an elected 
seven-member board.   On January 2001, the District merged with the Coastal Municipal Water 
District (Coastal) under the recommendation of the Local Agency Formation Commission of Orange 
County (LAFCO) as part of an effort to streamline local government.  The consolidation of the two 
agencies allows the new district to more efficiently provide wholesale water services for the benefit of 
residents living throughout the service area. 

 
The District’s reporting entity includes the accounts of the District and the Municipal Water District of 
Orange County Water Facilities Corporation (WFC).  Formed as a separate California nonprofit 
corporation on April 20, 1978 to assist in the financing of the Allen-McColloch Pipeline (AMP) and the 
Flow Augmentation Project (FAP), the WFC has no employees.   The WFC is governed by a seven-
member board comprised of the District’s board members.  The WFC had no activity or balances for the 
year ended June 30, 2017 and is kept active for potential future financing arrangements.  WFC is a 
blended component unit of the District and the District has operational responsibility for WFC. 

 
Basic Financial Statements 

 
The District’s basic financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the Notes to the 
Basic Financial Statements. 

 
Basis of Presentation 

 
The District accounts for its activities as an enterprise fund. An enterprise fund is a proprietary type fund 
used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business 
enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) 
of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that  periodic  determination  
of  revenues  earned,  expenses  incurred,  and/or  net  income  is appropriate for capital maintenance, 
public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.  
 
The District’s basic financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, and are 
presented on an economic measurement focus reporting all economic resources and obligations for the 
year ended June 30, 2017. 
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Net Position 

 
In the Statement of Net Position, net position is classified in the following categories: 

 
 Net  investment in capital assets – This amount consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 

depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings 
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets as applicable. 

 
 Restricted   net   position  –  This    amount   consists   of  restricted   assets  reduced   by   liabilities. 

Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also 
results in the recognition of a liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets 
reported or a resource  subject  to  constraints that  are  externally  imposed  by  creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
 Unrestricted net position – This amount is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of 

resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of  
investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, it is the District’s policy to use restricted 
resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

 
Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 

 
The District’s primary purpose is to provide a dependable wholesale supply of imported water for its 28 
member agencies.  Accordingly, operating revenues such as water sales, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the District, which is the purchase and resale of 
imported water to the District’s member agencies. 

 
Revenues from federal and state grants, reimbursements from participants and special projects, as  well  
as  special  project  expenses  are  defined  as  operating  revenues  and expenses, respectively.  
Nonoperating revenues consist of investment income and other miscellaneous income. 

 
Water Sales and Cost of Water Sold 

 
Historically, the District’s primary source of revenue has been from the resale of imported water to the 
District’s 28 member agencies located in Orange County.   Based on Metropolitan’s cost of water, 
each year Metropolitan’s Board of Directors approves water rates comprised of a capacity charge, 
readiness to serve charge and a per acre-foot charge.  Metropolitan’s rates are based on cost of 
service studies performed on a biennial basis.   Water rates are not subject to regulation by the 
California Public Utilities Commission or by any other local, state, or federal agency. Revenue from 
sales of water is recognized on the accrual basis as water is delivered. 
  
The District’s revenue is from a per retail m e t e r  connection charge and a groundwater customer 
charge. Choice services are charged directly to the agencies as a “fee for service” on a subscription 
basis.  The member agencies also pay for the resale of imported water in addition to the other charges 
noted. 
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Investments 

 
Fair Value Measurements 
 
The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, 
is based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices 
in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 
inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  
 
The District’s investment policy and delegation of investment authority, is reviewed and approved each 
year by the Board of Directors.   The investment policy authorizes the Treasurer to invest, reinvest, 
sell or exchange permitted fixed income securities in accordance with the California Government Code. 
Investment income from restricted assets remains restricted. 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash and short-term, highly liquid investments (i.e., Local 
Agency Investment Fund and Orange County Investment Pool) which are readily convertible to cash 
and mature within ninety (90) days of original purchase. 

 
Accounts Receivable 

 
The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations.  Management believes all 
accounts receivable are collectible. In the event any accounts receivable are determined they are 
uncollectible, an allowance is recorded. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and 
a useful life greater than one (1) year.   Upon retirement, sale or other disposition of capital assets, the 
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from their respective accounts and any gains or 
losses are recognized.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful life of the asset, which range from 3 to 10 years for furniture, fixtures, and equipment, and up to 30 
years for leasehold improvements. 

 
Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 

 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as Deposits and Prepaid Expenses in the basic financial statements. 

 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

 
The District reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions.  A deferred outflow 
of resources is a consumption of net position by the District that is applicable to a future reporting period.  
A deferred inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position by the district that is applicable to 
a future period.  Refer to Note 8 for items identified as deferred inflows and outflows as of June 30, 2017. 

 
 
 
 

Page 95 of 177



Municipal Water District of Orange County 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

18 
 

 
 
Compensated Absences 

 
As vacation leave is a vested employee benefit, the District is obligated to compensate employees for all 
earned but unused vacation days. Employee vacation days are accrued each pay period and reported as 
accrued liabilities. Depending on the length of employment, employees earn a minimum of 10 up to 
a maximum of 21 vacation days per year. Accumulated vacation days may not exceed 2 times the 
number of days earned per year without prior approval of the General Manager. Sick leave time is a non-
vested employee benefit (i.e. accumulated sick leave is not payable in the event of employee 
termination) and is considered a contingent liability and is not reflected in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

 
Unearned Revenue 

 
Unearned revenue represents grant revenues received in advance of the recognition of the related 
expense.  

 
Pensions 

 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to 
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s California 
Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) plan and additions to and deductions from the 
plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair 
value. 

 
Estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that could affect certain 
reported amounts in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates.  Also, the preparation of the financial statements inherently requires rounding of 
amounts and estimates. Management believes that any differences due to rounding are not material 

 
 
(2) Cash and Investments 
 

Cash and investments at June 30, 2017, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as 
follows: 

 
Statement of net position: 
 

Cash and cash equivalents (restricted) $    901,769 
Cash and cash equivalents (unrestricted) 5,936,806 
Investments (unrestricted) 3,012,987 

 
Total Cash and Investments $   9,851,562 
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Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following: 

 
Cash on hand $ 500 
Deposits with financial institutions 350,313 
Investments  9,500,749 

 
Total Cash and Investments             $        9,851,562 
 

 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District's Investment 
Policy 

 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California 
Government Code (or the District's investment policy, where more restrictive).  The table also identifies 
certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District's investment policy, where more 
restrictive) that address interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk. The District’s investment policy 
allows for funds to be divided into two categories. The Operating and Fiduciary Funds authorized 
investments are below: 
 
 
 

Maximum 
Authorized Investment Type Maturity 

 Maximum 
Percentage 
of Portfolio 

 Maximum 
Investment 

in One 
 
U.S. Treasuries  

 
5 years 

 
100% 

  
100% 

U.S. Government Agencies  5 years  100%  50%
Corporate Securities  5 years  30%   5%
Commercial Paper  270 days  25%  5%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  5 years  30%   5%
Bankers' Acceptances  180 days  40%  5%
Repurchase Agreements  1 year  20%  10%
Money Market Mutual Funds  N/A  20%  20%
Collective Investment Pool  N/A  20%  10%
County Investment Pool  N/A  100%  100%
State Investment Pool  N/A  100%  100%
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Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair market value 
of an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its 
fair market value to changes in market interest rates.  One of the ways that the District manages its 
exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter-term and longer-term 
investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or 
coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for 
operations.  Information about the sensitivity of the fair market values of the District's investments to 
market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the 
District's investments by maturity: 
 

 Remaining Maturity (in Months)  
12 Months 13 to 24 25-60 

 Investment Type   or Less   Months   Months  

Negotiable Certificate of Deposits  $  2,258,570  $   750,407  $   501,088   $1,007,075 
Corporate Securities         754,418                 -                  -        754,418 
Orange County Investment Pool      5,629,766    5,629,766                 -                  -  
State Investment Pool         857,995       857,995                 -                  -  

 $  9,500,749  $7,238,168  $   501,088   $1,761,493 
 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rat ing organizat ion. Presented below is  t he  min imum rat ing requi red by (where applicable) 
the California Government Code or District's investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating 
by Standard and Poor’s (S&P) as of the year end of each investment type.  The District purchases all 
investments at the minimum rating but some investments’ ratings may downgrade during its life but it is 
the District’s policy to hold investments until their maturity. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Minimum **
Investment Type Legal Rating AAAm A A- Not Rated

Negotiable Certificate of Deposits 2,258,570$   N/A -$              -$            -$               2,258,570$ 
Corporate Securities 754,418       A -                252,868   501,550      -                
Orange County Investment Pool 5,629,766     N/A 5,629,766   -             -                 -                
State Investment Pool 857,995       N/A -                -             -                 857,995      

9,500,749$   5,629,766$ 252,868$ 501,550$     3,116,565$ 

**  Investments conformed to District's investment Policy at time of acquisition

Ratings as of Year End
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Disclosures Relating to Fair Value Measurement and Application 
 
Fair value measurements are categorized based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value: 
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are significant other 
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  Investments categorized as Level 
2 are valued using a market approach using quoted market prices. Values are determined using pricing 
models and discounted cash flow models and includes management judgement and estimation. 
Uncategorized investments include investments in a non 2a-7 like pool, such as the Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF) and the Orange County Investment Pool (OCIP). These investments do not have 
a legally binding guarantee for their share price. The fair value of the investments can be calculated by 
multiplying LAIF’s and OCIP’s fair value per share factor times the District’s pool balance. LAIF and OCIP 
value participant shares on an amortized cost basis during the year and adjust to fair value at year-end. 
 
The District had the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017: 
 

 
 
Investments in LAIF and OCIP are uncategorized as deposits and withdrawals are made on the basis of 
$1 and not fair value.  Accordingly, under the fair value hierarchy, these investments are uncategorized. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 

 
The District’s investment policy contains limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one 
issuer as stipulated by the California Government Code. At June 30, 2017 the District did not have 
investments in more than one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, external 
investment pools) that represented 5% or more of total District investments. 

 
Custodial Credit Risk 

 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.   The custodial credit risk for investments is 
the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a 
government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of another party.  The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do 
not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits 
or investments, other than the following provision for deposits:       
 
 
 
 
 
 

Investment Type 1 2 3 Uncategorized

Negotiable Certificate of Deposits 2,258,570$   -$               2,258,570$  -$               -$                   
Corporate Securities 754,418       -                 754,418      -                 -                     
Orange County Investment Pool 5,629,766     -                 -                 -                 5,629,766        
State Investment Pool 857,995       -                 -                 -                 857,995           

9,500,749$   -$               3,012,988$  -$               6,487,761$      

Fair Value Application
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The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or  
local  governmental units  by  pledging  securities  in  an  undivided  collateral  pool  held  by  a 
depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).   The market 
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 
deposited by the public agency.  The Government Code also allows financial institutions to secure 
public agency deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the 
secured public deposits.  As of June 30, 2017 the District’s deposits with financial institutions are 
covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000, the remaining amounts of 
$381,292 were collateralized as described above. 
 
Investment in State and County Investment Pool 

 
The District is a voluntary participant in LAIF that is regulated by California Government Code Section 
16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California, and in the OCIP under the 
oversight of the Orange County Treasurer.  The fair market value of the District's investment in these 
pools are reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the District's pro-
rata share of the fair market value provided by LAIF and OCIP for the entire LAIF and OCIP portfolios 
(in relation to the  amortized cost  of  that  portfolio).    The balance available for withdrawal is based 
on the accounting records maintained by LAIF and OCIP, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

 
LAIF is a governmental investment pool managed and directed by the California State Treasurer and 
is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. An oversight committee comprised  of  
California  State  officials  and  various  participants  provides  oversight  to  the management of the 
fund.  The daily operations and responsibilities of LAIF fall under the auspices of the State Treasurer's 
office. 

 
The Agency is a participant in the OCIP. The OCIP  is  an  external  investment  pool,  and  is  not  
registered  with  the  Securities  Exchange Commission (SEC). The County Treasury Oversight 
Committee conducts OCIP oversight. The OCIP values participant shares on an amortized cost basis 
during the year and adjusts to fair value at year-end.  For further information regarding the OCIP, refer 
to the County of Orange Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
 
 

(3) Restricted Assets 
 

Restricted assets are monies held in restricted funds or accounts by the District for the benefit of member 
agencies, including a rate stabilization fund. As of June 30, 2017, $3,159,563 was reported as restricted 
assets related to trustee and member agency activities. 
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(4) Capital Assets 

 
The following is a summary of capital assets at June 30, 2017 with changes therein: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

(5) Pension Plan 
 
The District sponsors a Money Purchase Pension Plan (the Pension Plan), a defined contribution plan, 
under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) for the benefit of its Board of Directors. The Directors 
contribute 7.5 percent of their covered compensation to the Pension Plan. The Directors’ contributions to 
the Pension Plan totaled $25,101 for the year ended June 30, 2017.  Participants become vested in the 
Pension Plan at a rate of 20% per year of service until they are fully vested after five (5) years. 
 
District employees were previously part of the Pension Plan until March 2013 when they became 
members of the CalPERS plan. See Note 8. 
 

 
(6) Retiree Medical Plan – Other-Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 

 
(a) Plan Description: 

 
Effective October 1, 2011, the District established a Post-Retirement Healthcare Plan (Health Plan), and 
has contributed to a Section 115 Irrevocable Exclusive Benefit Trust for the pre-funding of post-
employment health care costs and these monies are not included in the financial statements.   Currently, 
the District provides health insurance for its retired employees and their dependent spouses (if married 
and covered on the District’s plan at time of retirement), or survivors in accordance with Board 
resolutions.   Medical coverage is provided for retired employees who are age 55 or over and who have a 
minimum of 10 consecutive years of full-time service with the District. The District pays 100% of the 
premium for the lowest cost single retiree plan plus 90% of the difference to the plan actually selected. 
Plus 80% of the combined retiree and spouse’s medical premium until age 65.  If a retiree in receipt of 
these benefits dies before reaching age 65, the surviving spouse will continue to receive coverage that 
the retiree would have been entitled to until age 65 only.  When a retiree reaches age 65 and/or is eligible 
for Medicare, the District reimburses the retiree up to $1,800 per calendar year for the cost of 
Supplemental Medical Insurance and Medicare Prescription Drug (Part D) Insurance for the lifetime of the 
retiree only.  Retirees who complete at least 25 consecutive years of full-time service receive District-paid 
dental and vision benefits along with the above-mentioned medical coverage and post-age 65 coverage 
includes Medicare Part B premium reimbursements until the time of the retiree and spouse’s death. 
Employees hired on or after July 1, 2012 are ineligible for District-paid retiree health benefits. 

 

2016 Additions Deletions 2017

Furniture,Fixtures and Equipmen 447,720$      22,143$        (12,553)$       457,310$      
Leasehold Improvements 3,415,059     280,541        -                   3,695,600     

3,862,779     302,684        (12,553)         4,152,910     
Less accumulated depreciation:
Furniture,Fixtures and Equipmen (421,469)       (5,833)           12,553          (414,749)$     
Leasehold Improvements (2,231,846)    (142,711)       -                   (2,374,557)    

(2,653,315)    (148,544)       12,553          (2,789,306)    
Net Capital Assets 1,209,464$    154,140$      -$                 1,363,604$    
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Plan benefits and contribution requirements of Health Plan members and the District are established, and 
may be amended, by the District’s Board of Directors. 
 
The following parties are responsible for administration of the Health Plan: 

 
 Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) serves as Trust Administrator and Consultant 
 US Bank serves as Trustee, and  
 HighMark Capital Management (HighMark) serves as Investment Manager 

 
PARS issues monthly account reports to the District and HighMark publishes quarterly performance 
reports. 

 
(b) Funding Policy: 

 
The contribution requirements of Health Plan members and the District are established, and may be 
amended, by the District’s Board of Directors.  Currently, contributions are not required from Health Plan 
members.  The District has fully funded the OPEB obligation with the addition of an OPEB Designated 
Reserve account. For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District made a total contribution of $436,769 of 
which $36,769 were for actual health care costs for its retirees and their covered dependents. 

 
(c) Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: 

 
The District’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the Annual Required Contribution of 
the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with Governmental Accounting 
Standard Board (GASB) Statement 45.  The most recent GASB Statement 45 actuarial valuation is dated 
July 1, 2016.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an on-going basis, is projected to 
cover normal costs each year and to amortize any unfunded liabilities of the Plan over a period not-to-
exceed 30 years.  
 
The following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPEB costs for the year ended June 
30, 2017, the amount actually contributed to the Health Plan and changes in the District’s net OPEB 
Asset. 

 

                           
 

Annual Required Contributions (ARC) $ 71,249            
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) (7,025)             
Adjustment to ARC 6,084              

Annual OPEB Cost 70,308            
Contribution made (436,769)         

(Increase)/Decrease in Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) (366,461)         
Net OPEB (Asset) at June 30, 2016 (117,085)         

Net OPEB (Asset) at June 30, 2017 $ (483,546)         
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(d) Three-Year Trend Information: 
 
For fiscal year 2017, the District’s annual OPEB cost (expense) of $70,308 was equal to the ARC including 
adjustments.   Information on the annual OPEB cost, Percentage of Annual OPEB Cost Contributed, and 
Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) are presented below: 
 

   Actual Percentage  
Fiscal  Annual  Contribution of Annual Net OPEB 
Year   OPEB (Net of OPEB Cost Obligation 

Ended  Cost Adjustments) Contributed (Asset) 
   

6/30/2015 $ 130,586 $ 186,351 142.70% $ (92,806)
6/30/2016  131,291 155,570 118.49% (117,085)
6/30/2017  70,308 436,769 621.22% (483,546)

 
(e) Funded Status and Funding Progress: 

 
As of July 1, 2016, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Health Plan was 69.59% percent funded. 
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $2,002,333, and the actuarial value of assets  was  
$1,393,327,  resulting  in  an  Unfunded  Actuarial  Accrued  Liability  (UAAL)  of $609,006.  The covered 
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the Health Plan) was $2,006,692 and the ratio of 
the UAAL to the covered payroll was 30.35%. 

 
Actuarial valuations of an on-going plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trends.  Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the Health Plan and the annual required contributions of the District are 
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are 
made about the future.  The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information following the notes to the basic financial statements, presents multi-year trend information 
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the 
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

 
(f)  Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 

 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time 
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the plan 
members at that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value 
of assets consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

 
In the July 1, 2016 actuarial valuation report, the entry age, level percent of pay cost method was used. 
The actuarial assumptions included a 6.00% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), a 
trend rate for healthcare costs increased to 8%, and an inflation rate of 6.00%.   The District’s unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability was paid to 89.6% fully funded in September 2016 with the difference being set 
aside in a designated reserve account in the amount of $209,006.
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(7) Risk Management 
 

The District is a member of the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority 
(JPIA) (Insurance Authority).  The Insurance Authority is a risk-pooling self-insurance authority, created 
under provisions of California Government Code Sections 6500 et. seq. The purpose of the Insurance 
Authority is to arrange and administer programs of insurance for the pooling of self- insured losses and to 
purchase excess insurance coverage for participating member agencies. 
 
The Insurance Authority bills the District a deposit premium at the beginning of each year, which is placed 
in a reserve fund to cover the self-insurance portion of any claim.  Settlements and/or expenses related to 
claims during the year are then charged to the reserve.  If the balance of the reserve at the end of the 
year is deemed too low in relation to the amount of outstanding claims, the District is billed for additional 
premiums.  When the claims are fully settled, any amounts remaining in the reserve are refunded to the 
District. 
 
At June 30, 2017, the District participated in the self-insurance programs as follows: 
 
Property Loss - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $100,000 per occurrence and 
has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $150 million.  The District has a $1,000 deductible for 
buildings, personal property and fixed equipment. 
 
General, Auto and Public Officials Liability - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $5 
million per occurrence, and has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $60 million. 
 
Crime Policy/Fidelity Bond - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $100,000 per 
occurrence and has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $2 million. The District has a $1,000 
deductible. 
 
The District pays annual premiums to the Insurance Authority for all coverages. There were no instances 
in the past three years when a settlement exceeded the District’s coverage. 
 
Workers’ Compensation – This Plan is administered through the Special District Risk Management 
Authority (SDRMA).The SDRMA is self-insured up to the statutory limit per occurrence.   
 
Employer’s liability is insured up to a $5 million limit per occurrence. SDRMA maintains a Self-Insured 
Retention that is periodically adjusted based on market conditions. 
 
The District pays annual premiums for all coverages. There were no instances in the past three years 
when a settlement exceeded the District’s coverage and the District did not file any claims against any of 
the policies.  
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(8) Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Plan 
 

(a) General Information about the Pension Plan 
 

Plan Descriptions – Effective March 1, 2013, all qualified regular full-time employees working over 
1,000 hours in a fiscal year are eligible to participate in the District’s employee pension plan, a cost-
sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The CalPERS Plans 
(the Plans) consists of a miscellaneous pool and a safety pool (referred to as “risk pools”), which are 
comprised of individual employer miscellaneous and safety rate plans, respectively. The risk pools are 
included within the Public Employees’ Retirement Funds C (PERF C). Benefit provisions under the Plans 
are established and may be amended by State statute and the District’s resolution.  CalPERS issues 
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, 
assumptions, membership information, and related financial information can be found on the CalPERS 
website at: http://www.calpers.ca.gov. 
 
Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment.  Members with 
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are 
eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: 
the Basic Death Benefit, the 1959 Survivor Benefit or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The 
cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement 
Law. 
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2017, are summarized as follows: 

 
Miscellaneous 

Prior to On or after 
Hire Date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013 
Formula 2.0% @55 2.0% @62
Benefit vesting schedule   5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-63 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 1.426% to 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 6.250%
Required employer contribution rates 10.880% 6.555%
Pensionable Compensation Cap*         No Cap         $140,424 

  
 Will increase to reflect changes in the Consumer Price Index 

 
Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement law requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and 
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in rate. Funding contributions for  Plans  are  
determined annually  on  an  actuarial  basis  as  of  June  30  by CalPERS.  The actuarially determined 
rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the 
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to 
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rates of employees. 
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Contributions recognized by the Plans from the employer for the year ended June 30, 2017 were 
$252,815. The District also contributed 2% of the Classic Plan employee’s contribution, or $40,886, on 
behalf of employees during the year. The District is phasing out contributions paid on behalf of employees 
by 1% per year, until completely eliminated by July 2018. 

 
(b) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources  Related to 
Pensions 

 
As of June 30, 2017, the District’s reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability of the Plan is as follows: 

 
Proportionate 

Share 
of Net Pension 

Liability 
Miscellaneous $      1,871,472  

 
 

The District’s net pension liability was measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability of 
the collective cost-sharing plan.  The District’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, 
and the total pension liability for the Plan was used to calculate the net pension liability determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015 rolled forward to June 30, 2016 using standard update 
procedures.   The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined.  The District’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2015 and 
2016 were as follows: 

 
Miscellaneous 

Proportion - June 30, 2015 0.05019% 
Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.05387% 
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00368% 
 

At the year ended June 30, 2017, the District’s recognized pension expense/(credit) of $221,761.  At June 
30, 2017, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
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The amount of $252,815 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 
June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

  

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between Expected
and Actual Experience 14,196$           2,217$             
Changes of Assumptions -                      134,310           
Differences between Projected
and Actual Investment Earnings 468,324           -                      
Change in Employer's Proportion 118,276           61,722             
Differences between District Contributions
and Proportionate Share of Contributions 36,680             32,830             
Pension Contributions Made
Subsequent to Measurement Date 252,815           -                  

Total 890,291$         231,079$         

Year ended
June 30,

2018 22,029$           
2019 23,080             
2020 237,908           
2021 123,381           

406,398$         
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Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation were 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions. 

 
Miscellaneous 

Valuation Date June 30, 2015 
Measurement Date June 30, 2016 

 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 7.65% 
Inflation 2.75% 
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service 
Mortality Rate Table1 Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all     

funds 
Post Retirement Benefit Increase  Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing 

Power Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing 
Power applies, 2.75% thereafter 

 
(1) 

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 20 years of mortality improvements 

using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table, please refer to the 2014 experience study report.  

 
All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase, 
mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report may be accessed on the CalPERS website at 
www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and Publications. 
 
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent. To 
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of the discount rate for each 
plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different 
from the actuarially assumed discount rate. The tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, 
the current 7.65 percent discount rate is appropriate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is 
not deemed necessary. The long-term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent is applied to all plans in the 
Public Employees’ Retirement Fund (PERF). The cash flows used in the testing were developed 
assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and as 
scheduled in all future years. The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB 
Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained at CalPERS website under the GASB 68 section. 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
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In determining the long-term expected rate of return, staff took into account both short-term and long-term 
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund (PERF) cash flows. Taking into account 
historical returns of all the Public Employees Retirement Funds’ asset classes (which includes the agent 
plan and two cost-sharing plans or PERF A, B, and C funds), expected compound (geometric) returns 
were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block 
approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of 
benefits was calculated for each PERF fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single 
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one 
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to 
the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 

 
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. The target allocation shown was adopted by the Board effective on July 1, 2015.  
 
  Long-term Expected  Long-term Expected

 
Asset Class 

 Target
Allocation

Real Rate of Return 
 Years 1-10 1 

 Real Rate of Return
Years 11 + 2

    
Global Equity  51% 5.25%  5.71%
Global Fixed Income  20% 0.99%  2.43%
Inflation Sensitive  6% 0.45%  3.36%
Private Equity  10% 6.83%  6.95%
Real Estate  10% 4.50%  5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland  2% 4.50%  5.09%
Liquidity  1% (0.55%)  (1.05%)
    
    Total  100%   

 
1 An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period 
2 An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period 

 
 

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate – The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, 
calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point 
higher than the current rate. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1%  Decrease 
(6.65%)

Discount Rate 
(7.65%)

1%  Increase   
(8.65%)

District's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 3,083,318$      1,871,472$      869,942$         
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 

 
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position are 
recognized in pension expense systematically over time. 

 
The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The 
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense. 

 
The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss: 

 

 
 

(9)  Commitments and Contingencies 
 

The District is involved in various litigation from time to time arising from the normal course of business.   
In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the District is not involved in any litigation that is 
expected to have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position of the District at June 30, 
2017.  
 
 

(10)  Subsequent Events 
 

The District has evaluated events or transactions through October 26, 2017, the date on which the 
financial statements were available to be issued, for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial 
statements and determined no other subsequent matters require disclosure or adjustment to the 
accompanying financial statements. 

Net Difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

All other amounts

5 year straight-line amortization

Straight-line amortization over the expected average 
remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of all members 
that are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and 
retired) as of the beginning of the measurement 
period

Page 110 of 177



(Unaudited)

REQUIRED 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
INFORMATION

Page 111 of 177



Municipal Water District of Orange County 
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

33 
 

 
Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan 

Schedule of Funding Progress  
 
 
Retiree Healthcare Plan 
 

 
 
1 Restated Annual Covered Payroll 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Value Actuarial % of Payroll

Actuarial of Plan Accrued Annual Percentage
Actuarial Accrued Assets Liability Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Liability (AVA) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (1) (a) (b) (a)-(b) ((b)/(a) (C) [(a)-(b)/(c)]

7/1/2011 1,610,754$  -$             1,610,754$  0.00% 2,634,657$  1 61.14%
7/1/2014 1,740,686    1,116,390    624,296       64.14% 2,214,598    1 28.19%
7/1/2016 2,002,333    1,393,327    609,006       69.59% 2,006,692    30.35%
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Cost Sharing Retirement Plan 
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Last Ten Years* 
 

 

 
 Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown. 

 

Changes in assumptions. The discount rate was changed from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 
7.65 percent to correct for an adjustment to exclude administrative expense.   
 
 
Notes to Schedule 
 
Fiscal Year End: 
Valuation Date: 

6/30/2017 
6/30/2014 

6/30/2016 
6/30/2013 

6/30/2015 
6/30/2012 

 
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:  
 

2017 2016 2015
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.05387% 0.05019% 0.02186%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 1,871,472$        1,376,955$   1,360,017$        

Covered Payroll 3,022,872$        2,748,796$   2,640,576$        

Proportionate Share of the net pension liability as a percentage of 
  covered payroll 61.91% 50.09% 51.50%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
  liability 75.87% 78.40% 79.82%

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age  Entry Age  Entry Age  
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll Level Percent of Payroll Level Percent of Payroll 
Asset Valuation Method Market Value Market Value Market Value 
Discount Rate 7.65% 7.65% 7.50% 
Projected Salary 
Increase 

3.30% to 14.20% 
depending on Age, 
Service, and type of 
employment 

3.30% to 14.20% 
depending on Age, 
Service, and type of 
employment 

3.30% to 14.20% 
depending on Age, 
Service, and type of 
employment 

Inflation 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 
Payroll Growth 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
Individual Salary Growth A merit scale varying by 

duration of employment 
coupled with an assumed 
annual inflation growth of 
2.75% and an annual 
production growth of 
0.25%. 

A merit scale varying by 
duration of employment 
coupled with an assumed 
annual inflation growth of 
2.75% and an annual 
production growth of 
0.25%. 

A merit scale varying by 
duration of employment 
coupled with an assumed 
annual inflation growth of 
2.75% and an annual 
production growth of 
0.25%. 
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Cost Sharing Retirement Plan 

Schedule of Contributions 
Last Ten Years* 

 
 

 
 
 
 
* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown. 
 
1 Restated Covered Payroll 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contributions 252,815$            220,517$            288,065$            
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined 
contribution (252,815)            (220,517)            (288,065)            
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                      -$                      -$                      

Covered Payroll 3,022,872$         2,748,796$         1 2,640,576$         1 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 8.36% 8.02% 10.91%
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Budgeted (Y/N):  NA Budgeted amount:  NA Core __ Choice __ 

Action item amount:  NA Line item:   

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted):   
 

 

Item No. 3 
  

 
 
 
 

ACTION ITEM 
November 15, 2017    

 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Administration & Finance Committee 
 (Directors Thomas, Barbre, Finnegan) 
 
 Robert J. Hunter, General Manager  
 
Staff Contacts: Hilary Chumpitazi, Accounting Manager   
  
  
   
SUBJECT:  Options for Funding CalPERS Unfunded Liability  
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: Review options and direct staff on how to 
fund the CalPERS unfunded liability. 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
Committee recommends (To be determined at Committee Meeting) 
 
 
DETAILED REPORT 
 
 
As previously reported MWDOC’s unfunded liability for CalPERS Classic Members is 
$2,193,187 as of June 30, 2016. At the October A&F Committee meeting, staff was 
requested to evaluate options in prefunding the PERS liability and to return with information.  
Below are two options along with the pros and cons to prefund this liability. 
 

1. Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) offers a 115 Trust through their Pension 
Rate Stabilization Program (PRSP). 
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Pros: 

• Access funds at any time to be used for pension only 
• Earn higher yields through active management 
• Balances are aggregated for our OPEB and Pension assets for fees on a 

tiered schedule 
• No setup costs or termination fees 

Cons: 
• Restricted to using funds for only pension related costs 

 
2. MWDOC contracts with a third party to manage these separately held funds. 

 
Pros: 

• Access funds at any time to be used for anything the Board deems 
appropriate 

• Earn higher yields through active management 
• Choose how we want the funds invested 

Cons: 
• To be determined 

 
Both options would require a separate Investment Policy statement.  
 
I requested information from other agencies on what they are doing and here are their 
responses: 
 

Agency  Response 
Irvine Ranch Water 
District  Set up its own separately managed 115 Trust in 2013. 
  Hired an outside advisor to manage the investment portfolio. 
  Currently 90-95% funded with a target to remain over 90%. 
   
Three Valleys MWD  Using the PARS trust and budgeted an additional $50,000 annually.  
  Also contracted with GovInvest. 
   
City of Newport Beach  Reamoritized payment schedule to CalPERS to shorten the period 
  and increased the mandatory minimum payment.  
  Payments made monthly to CalPERS. 

 
 
Eastern MWD advised that under present GASB standards we cannot count the balance in 
a 115 Trust in our net pension liability/asset calculation. 
 
Please see the following report from Demsey, Filliger & Associates showing accelerated 
payment options to fully fund our liability in five and ten year plans, per the Committee’s 
request at the October A&F Meeting. 
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Budgeted (Y/N):  Y 
Budgeted amount:  $28,288 
 

Core X Choice __ 

Action item amount:  NA Line item:   

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted):   
 

Item No. 4 
  

 
 

ACTION ITEM 
November 15, 2017 

 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Administration & Finance Committee 
 (Directors Thomas, Barbre, Finnegan) 
 
 Robert J. Hunter, General Manager 
 
Staff Contacts: Cathy Harris, Administrative Services Manager 
  Katie Davanaugh, Sr. Executive Assistant 
 
Subject: Long-term Disability Insurance, Life Insurance and Employee 

Assistance Plans 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1) Approve the recommended change in insurers for life insurance from Lincoln 
Financial to Sun Life and the proposed change to the life insurance age reduction 
formula, as presented. 

2) Determine whether Directors will be covered for life insurance benefits. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
Committee recommends (To be determined at Committee Meeting) 
 
SUMMARY INFORMATION 
 
 
Staff solicited quotes from WSP Benefits and Alliant Employee Benefits for Long Term 
Disability and Life Insurance and received responses from both agents.  Based on benefit and 
cost comparison of each plan, staff recommends moving the life insurance to Sun Life, and 
renew the long-term disability insurance policy with Sun Life through Alliant.  Both benefits 
would be provided by Alliant Insurance Services as the broker, for ease in administering 
invoicing and potential claims processing. 
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The District currently offers to all full-time employees Long-Term Disability Insurance 
through Lincoln Financial; and Life Insurance and Employee Assistance Program through 
Sun Life.  The contracts for these policies expires December 31, 2017. 
 
Short-Term Disability Insurance 
The District currently participates in the State of California Disability Insurance program for 
short-term benefits for eligible employees who are unable to work due to a non-work-related 
illness or injury, or due to pregnancy.  A weekly benefit is calculated based on an 
employee’s highest quarter of earnings in a base period.  An employee becomes eligible to 
receive benefits following a seven day waiting period of being unable to work.  Employees 
may coordinate this benefit with use of their sick and vacation pay in order to receive a full 
paycheck however, they cannot exceed their regular earnings. 
 
Long-Term Disability Insurance 
This insurance serves as partial income replacement should an employee become seriously 
injured or disabled and unable to work due to a non-work related injury or illness. The 
insurance becomes available after a waiting period of 60 days and provides 60% of an 
employee’s salary up to a maximum monthly benefit of $7,500. Part-time employees and 
Directors are not eligible for long term disability insurance, per Sun Life Insurance policy 
guidelines. 
 
Life Insurance 
The District currently provides a Life/ADD (Accidental Death & Dismemberment) benefit of 
two times annual salary to a maximum of $250,000.  Supplemental coverage is offered at 
employees’ expense upon completion and acceptance of an application for this additional 
insurance.  Currently, the life insurance benefits are reduced to 65% of the original benefits at 
age 65 and 50% of the original benefit at age 70. Full-time employees are currently eligible to 
participate in this benefit.   
 
Directors may be included for a $25,000 life insurance policy without the option to purchase 
supplemental life insurance.  If approved, all Directors would be required to participate and 
self-payment is not permitted. 
 
Long-Term Disability, Life Insurance and EAP premiums are currently paid for by the District.  
Short-term Disability is paid for by both the employee and employer.   
 
Changes to the life insurance policy include increasing the age reduction formula, as follows: 
 
 From age 65 to 75 with a 35% reduction 
 From age 70 to 80 with a 50% reduction 
 
Employee Assistance Program 
 
Current coverage is provided by ComPsych® The Guidance Resources Company for the 
Employee Assistance Program and work-life services. No changes are recommended at this time 
and the renewal rate remains unchanged at $1.05 per employee, per month 
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Policy Rates for 2018: 
 

 
 
 

Long Term Disability 

  Lincoln Current Lincoln Renewal Sun Life
     
Elimination Period 60 days 60 days 60 days
     
Monthly benefit % 60 60 60
     

Maximum Monthly Benefit $7,500 $7,500 $7,500
     
Rate Guarantee n/a 12 months 24 months
volume 262842 262842 262842

Rate per $100/volume 0.330 0.360 0.308
     
Monthly Premium $867 $946 $810 
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Budgeted (Y/N):  Y Budgeted amount:  $100,000 Core _x_ Choice __ 

Action item amount:  $44,236 Line item:  2000-19-8811 

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted):   
 

 

Item No. 5 
  

 
 
 
 

ACTION ITEM 
November 15, 2017 

 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Administration & Finance Committee 
  (Directors Thomas, Barbre, Finnegan) 
 
  Robert J. Hunter, General Manager  
 
Staff Contacts: Cathy Harris, Administrative Services Manager 
 
 
SUBJECT:   SELECTION OF CONSULTANT FOR ARCHITECTURAL, SPACE 

PLANNING, INTERIOR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION 
ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to enter into a 
contract with IDS Group for architectural, space planning, interior design and construction 
administration services in the amount of $29,236; and approve a contingency amount of 
$15,000 for city permit fees, possible ADA compliance costs that may arise and interior 
design services that may be required as the project moves forward, for a total Board 
authorization of $44,236.     
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
Committee recommends (To be determined at Committee Meeting) 
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DETAILED REPORT 
 
MWDOC’s office building was built in 1973 and is approximately 44 years old.  The building 
was remodeled in 1992 when the District moved from Santa Ana to Fountain Valley.  Since 
1992, there have been the following remodels:  

• 1996   
o Seismic retrofit of roof  

• 2003 
o Remodel of Finance Department area  
o Conference room 102 and surrounding area/offices in that vicinity were 

remodeled  
• 2007  

o Intern area was renovated and an additional office was created 
• 2013  

o HVAC Replacement 
o Carpet was replaced in main hallways and conference room 101 

• 2016  
o MWDOC lobby area was updated 

• 2017 
o Back hallway carpet was replaced due to leak 
o Atrium landscape and renovation     

 
With the successful implementation of the Records Management Program to digitize the 
District’s archives, the former archival space (library) is now available for other uses.  
Combined with some existing space inefficiencies, this provides an opportunity to 
reevaluate the efficient use of existing space, and refresh some of the office interior.  Staff is 
recommending a consultant be hired to conduct a space planning analysis to improve 
efficiency, update and relocate conference rooms, relocate and maximize storage, and 
determine the most favorable balance between shared work areas, private workstations and 
private offices that allow for collaboration and enhance work flow processes.  Staff is 
proposing to redesign approximately 3,000 square feet of its existing 12,800 square foot 
building and issued a Request for Proposal seeking architectural, engineering, space 
planning, interior design and construction administration services. This work is also being 
coordinated with the seismic review of the office building.   
 
In past remodels, a professional assessment to evaluate workflow, storage and noise was 
not completed.  With the digital archival of documents and changing storage needs, a 
thorough evaluation of the various space and use factors should be evaluated by a 
professional architect.        
 
Staff included funds in the 2017-18 Budget for this effort.  This project will be coordinated 
with the EOC Assessment study to ensure that the use of the conference rooms can be 
used as an EOC Operations site in the event of an emergency.  The key areas to be 
evaluated are:  

• Conference Room 101 
• Library (to be converted to a new conference room) 
• Copy Room  
• MWDOC Reception area   
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• Existing open office space area and adjacent offices along the north side of the 
atrium  

• Conference Room 102 (use of office space to be determined) 
• Evaluate options for space and design consideration for providing back-up power to 

the facility during power grid outage 
• Acoustic assessment of areas to be renovated for noise control  

 
Staff is requesting the consultant provide: 

• Assessment and space needs analysis 
• Interior design services 
• Develop architectural construction plans, specifications and bid solicitation package 

necessary for remodel space  
• Oversee and assist with construction and furniture installation activities  

 
In accordance with the District Administrative Code, staff issued an RFP for architectural, 
space planning, interior design and construction administration services. The RFP was 
posted on the District website and sent to seven vendors.  A mandatory pre-proposal 
meeting was held on October 16th at which time five vendors attended.  The proposals 
were due by October 30th and three proposals were received, as follows: 
 

Project Phase Casco Contractors, 
Irvine 

IDS Group, Irvine  Rosenberg+Associates, 
Los Angeles 

Phase 1 -Facility Assessment and 
Space Needs Analysis  

$10,320 $6,268 $43,420 

Interior Design Services  $17,690 $1,790 Did not provide 
Preconstruction Phase – Develop 
architectural drawings, plans and 
specifications  

$35,620 $17,156 Did not provide  

Construction Phase – Oversee all 
construction and furniture 
installation activities  

$34,070 $4,022 Did not provide  

Reimbursable estimates  $2,000   
ADA Accessibility  $41,165 Included in above 

costs 
Included in the above 

cost   
Total Cost  $140,865 $29,236 $43,420 

 
The District required specific proposal content requirements consisting of the following: 

• Vendor information 
• List of subcontractors 
• Methodology to providing services 
• Cost for each phase, hourly rates number of hours etc.    
• Related experience  

 
If the proposals did not meet the content requirements they were disqualified. Based on the 
initial criteria two of the three vendors met the criteria.   
 
A staff committee of three reviewed the proposals based on the following criteria:  

• Related organizational experience  
• Qualifications and experience of contractor and staff to be assigned to project  
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• Cost of services  
• Demonstrated ability to successfully manage projects of similar scale  
• Clarity and succinctness of proposal 
• Quality of approach and methodology 

 
Based on its review of the proposals and the criteria, the committee is recommending the 
IDS Group be selected for this project.  The IDS group provided a detailed approach and 
methodology, have familiarity in working with public agencies and the cost of services and 
hours were very reasonable.   
 
Staff budgeted a total of $100,000 in FY 2017-18 for architectural design, space planning, 
interior design services and project management fees. This amount is within the amount 
budgeted.  Staff is recommending the Board authorize the General Manager to enter into a 
contract with IDS Group, for architectural, space planning, interior design and construction 
services in the amount of $29,236.  In addition staff is requesting the Board approve a 
contingency amount of $15,000 for city permit fees, possible ADA compliance costs that 
may arise as a result of the findings and additional interior design services that may be 
required as the project moves forward, for a total Board authorization of $44,236.     
 
Please be advised the IDS Group is currently under contract with the District for the South 
EOC and MWDOC office seismic review.     
 
Staff will return to the Board prior to awarding any construction related services.   
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Budgeted (Y/N):  N/A Budgeted amount:  N/A Core __ Choice __ 

Action item amount:  None Line item:   

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted):   
 

 

 
Item No. 6 

  
 

ACTION ITEM 
November 15, 2017 

 
 
TO: Administration and Finance Committee 
 (Directors Thomas, Finnegan, Barbre) 
 
 
FROM: Robert Hunter, General Manager 
 
 Staff Contact: Heather Baez 
    
  
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZATION TO VOTE ON BEHALF OF MWDOC IN ACWA’S 

ELECTION OF PRESIDENT, VICE PRESIDENT AND BYLAW 
AMENDMENTS   

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Committee review the candidates and proposed bylaw 
amendments, and authorize MWDOC Board President Wayne Osborne or his designee to 
cast the District’s ballot for the ACWA President, Vice President and bylaws update at 
ACWA’s Fall Conference on November 29, 2017.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
Committee recommends (To be determined at Committee Meeting) 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
On November 29, during ACWA’s Fall Conference, there will be a General Membership 
meeting in the Platinum Ballroom 1-6, Marriott Anaheim, at 1:20 p.m. The purpose of the 
meeting is to formally nominate and elect ACWA’s President and Vice President for the 
2018-2019 term and to conduct a vote by the membership on proposed amendments to 
ACWA’s Bylaws as recommended by the Board of Directors at its meeting on September 
29, 2017. 
 
Nomination and Election of ACWA President and Vice President  
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The ACWA Nominating Committee has announced a 2018-2019 slate that recommends 
current Vice President Brent Hastey (Director, Yuba County Water Agency) for ACWA 
President and current Federal Affairs Committee Chair Steven LaMar (Director, Irvine 
Ranch Water District) for ACWA Vice President. As provided by ACWA’s Bylaws 
nominations from the floor will be accepted prior to the vote. Such nominations and seconds 
must be supported by a resolution of the governing body of the member agency making and 
seconding such nomination. 
 
Proposed Amendments to ACWA’s Bylaws  
 
As part of the ongoing efforts to ensure ACWA’s Bylaws are current and reflect consistency 
with other governance documents and daily operations, the Board of Directors is 
recommending several amendments to the bylaws for consideration by the membership.   
 
Below is brief description of each recommended change along with ACWA staff 
recommendation.  The proposed bylaws have also been reviewed by the Legal Affairs 
Committee working group.  The full amendments and language can be found in the 
attachments: General Session Notification Memo and in the redlined version of ACWA’s 
bylaws.   
 
Article 7 – Standing Committees 
Each limited standing committee shall have a membership composition that is comprised of 
members in the quantity and with qualifications as defined by the provisions of these 
bylaws. 
 
Staff is recommending this amendment to the bylaws to allow the President flexibility in 
appointing members to limited standing committees and to provide an odd number 
committee composition total. 
 
Committee Composition Terms in Sections 5 through 17. 
The use of the term “individual” versus “representative” (and one instance of “member”) was 
inconsistent throughout the committee composition description for each of the standing 
committees in Article 7.  
 
Staff revised the terms in the committee section descriptions (Sections 5 through 17) to 
“member” for consistency and the surrounding language where needed in response to the 
LAC Workgroup’s analysis. (See attached bylaws for proposed amendments to these 
sections.) 
 
Section 5. Agriculture Committee 
There shall be an Agriculture Committee whose duty it shall be to recommend Association 
policy, positions and programs to the Board of Directors, State Legislative Committee, 
Federal Affairs Committee or other committees, as appropriate, regarding agricultural 
issues affecting the interests of ACWA and its members. The committee shall consist of at 
least one member from each region. 
 
This would be a new committee.  The proposal is supported by staff and the ACWA Board. 
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Section 12. Legal Affairs Committee 
The committee shall be composed of between 34 and 44 attorneys, each of whom shall be 
a member of the California Bar and shall be, or act as, counsel for a member of the agency, 
representing diverse interests within the Association, including but not limited to, different 
geographical areas throughout the state, large and small agencies, agricultural and urban 
agencies, agencies created under the various enabling statutes, etc. The committee shall 
consist of a least one member from each region. 
 
Rationale:  Change the committee composition range so there is a resulting odd number 
total when the chair is added. 
 
 
Article 9 – Meeting of Members, Section 8. Amendments, Revisions, and Resolutions. 
Current bylaws require that before any amendments or revisions to the bylaws, or 
resolutions, may be considered at any meeting of the Association, any such amendment, 
revision, or resolution shall be submitted to the executive director/secretary at least 30 days 
prior to the first day of such meeting.  
 
Rationale:  Staff recommended that the deadline for submitting requests for amendments, 
revisions, and resolutions be changed from 30 to 120 days prior to any membership 
meeting to provide the Legal Affairs Committee sufficient time to review and develop the 
required analysis and for staff to provide adequate notice to the members as set forth in 
Article 9, Sections 3 and 4 of the bylaws. Note: Staff typically notifies ACWA members at 
least 45 days prior to a given membership meeting to allow the member agency boards 
adequate time to designate their authorized voting representative. 
 
The Board of Directors recommends adoption of the proposed amendments to ACWA’s 
Bylaws through a vote of the membership. 
 
 
Attachments:  General Session Membership Meeting Notification Memo 
 General Session/Election Procedures 
 Proposed ACWA Bylaws Amendments – Redline Version 
 Proxy Designation Form 
 Request for Support, Steve LaMar  
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MEMORANDUM 

TO: ACWA Members:  General Managers and Board Presidents 

CC: ACWA Board of Directors 

FROM: Timothy Quinn, ACWA Executive Director 

DATE: October 11, 2017 

SUBJECT: General Session Membership Meeting at ACWA 2017 Fall Conference 

There will be a General Session Membership Meeting at the 2017 Fall Conference in Anaheim, California, 
on Wednesday, November 29. The meeting will be held in the Platinum Ballroom 1-6, Marriott Anaheim, 
at 1:20 p.m. The purpose of the meeting is to formally nominate and elect ACWA’s President and Vice 
President for the 2018-2019 term and to conduct a vote by the membership on proposed amendments 
to ACWA’s Bylaws as recommended by the Board of Directors at its meeting on September 29, 2017. 

Election of President/Vice President 

The ACWA Nominating Committee has announced a 2018-2019 slate that recommends current Vice 
President Brent Hastey for ACWA President and current Federal Affairs Committee Chair Steven LaMar 
for ACWA Vice President. As provided by ACWA’s Bylaws (Article 9, Section 9) nominations from the 
floor will be accepted prior to the vote. Such nominations and seconds must be supported by a resolu-
tion of the governing body of the member agency making and seconding such nomination. (See 
attached for General Session/Election Procedures.) 

Proposed Amendments to ACWA’s Bylaws 

As part of the ongoing efforts to ensure ACWA’s Bylaws are current and reflect consistency with other 
governance documents and daily operations, the Board of Directors is recommending several 
amendments to the bylaws for consideration by the membership. A Legal Affairs Committee (LAC) 
Workgroup reviewed the proposed amendments and provided an analysis pursuant to ACWA’s Bylaws 
(Article 9, Section 8). 

Following is a list of the proposed amendments to the bylaws along with the rational for the change and 
the LAC Workgroup’s analysis. 
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ACWA Members: General Managers and Board Presidents 
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Article 7 – Standing Committees 

1. Section 4. Committee Composition.  Each limited standing committee shall have a membership 
composition that is comprised of members in the quantity and with qualifications as defined by the 
provisions of these bylaws. The committee chair position shall not be included in the maximum 
count for determining the committee composition total of any given limited committee. The 
committee chair shall, however, be a voting member of their respective committee subject to the 
rules and procedures of each committee. 

Rationale:  Staff is recommending this amendment to the bylaws to allow the President 
flexibility in appointing members to limited standing committees and to provide an odd 
number committee composition total. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis: The proposed revision is clear and meets its intended purpose. 

2. Committee Composition Terms in Sections 5 through 17. 

Rationale.  Staff noted that the use of the term “individual” versus “representative” 
(and one instance of “member”) was inconsistent throughout the committee 
composition description for each of the standing committees in Article 7. Staff asked the 
LAC Workgroup to review Section 1, Qualifications, as well as each of the committee 
descriptions to make a determination as to which term best applies for all of the 
committees for purposes of consistency throughout Article 7. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis:  Reading of the various ACWA committee sections suggests 
that “Member” would be the most appropriate word for consistency throughout the 
bylaws. However, the use of a single term, may require some minor revisions to 
surrounding text for clarity (for an example see Section 15 (State Legislative Committee) 
where “member” is separately used to denote a “member agency” and so would need 
to state “member-agency” consistently to accommodate the more general use of 
“member” throughout the bylaws). 

Staff Response:  Staff revised the terms in the committee section descriptions (Sections 
5 through 17) to “member” for consistency and the surrounding language where 
needed in response to the LAC Workgroup’s analysis. (See attached bylaws for 
proposed amendments to these sections.) 

3. Section 5. Agriculture Committee. There shall be an Agriculture Committee whose duty it shall be to 
recommend Association policy, positions and programs to the Board of Directors, State Legislative 
Committee, Federal Affairs Committee or other committees, as appropriate, regarding agricultural 
issues affecting the interests of ACWA and its members. The committee shall consist of at least one 
member from each region. 
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Rationale:  The 2016-2017 Business and Strategic Plan initiative to increase involvement 
and engagement from ACWA’s agricultural members has successfully generated 
momentum amongst ACWA’s agricultural members and a renewed attention to and 
involvement in key policy issues that uniquely affect agricultural water suppliers. Amidst 
this success, a concern has arisen that the momentum could be lost once the Board of 
Directors finishes its current term and the initiative sunsets. This concern has sparked 
the suggestion that ACWA should consider creating an Agriculture Committee as the 
thirteenth standing committee of the Association to continue the objectives of the Ag 
Initiative long-term. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis:  The proposed revision is clean and meets its intended 
purpose. 

4. Section 12. Legal Affairs Committee. There shall be a Legal Affairs Committee whose duty it shall be 
to support the mission of the Association, and more particularly to deal with requests for assistance 
involving legal matters of significance to members of the Association agencies, including but not 
limited to state and federal court litigation, water rights matters, selected regulatory and resources 
agency matters, proposed bylaw revisions, review of legislation as requested by the State Legislative 
Committee, etc. The committee shall consider matters and issues submitted to it in order to 
determine which ones are of major significance to the members of the Association agencies and, 
assuming a finding of major significance, recommend to the Board of Directors the position(s) which 
the committee believes the Association should take with respect thereto. The committee shall be 
composed of between 35 34 and 45 44 attorneys, each of whom shall be a member of the California 
Bar and shall be, or act as, counsel for a member of the Association agency, representing diverse 
interests within the Association, including but not limited to, different geographical areas 
throughout the state, large and small agencies, agricultural and urban agencies, agencies created 
under the various enabling statutes, etc. Further, there shall be at least one representative from 
each region on the committee. The committee shall consist of a least one member from each region. 

Rationale:  Change the committee composition range so there is a resulting odd number total 
when the chair is added. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis:  Considered together with the general change in Section 4, Committee 
Composition, above, this change accomplishes its purposes and maintains the current overall 
LAC membership numbers. 

Article 9 – Meeting of Members 

5. Section 8. Amendments, Revisions, and Resolutions. Before any amendments or revisions to the 
bylaws, or resolutions, may be considered at any meeting of the Association, any such amendment, 
revision, or resolution shall be submitted to the executive director/secretary at least 30 90 days 
prior to the first day of such meeting. The executive director/secretary shall promptly distribute any 
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proposed amendments or revisions to the Legal Affairs Committee for the Legal Affairs Committee 
to develop an unbiased analysis of the amendments or revisions. Following development of an 
analysis for the proposed amendments or revisions, the executive director/secretary shall distribute 
copies of any resolutions, amendments or revisions, including any applicable analyses, to all 
members of the Association at least five not less than 10 days or more than 90 days prior to 
presentation at such meeting. The written notice of the membership meeting shall be given to each 
voting member of the Association consistent with the provisions defined in Section 3. The 30 90-day 
rule may be suspended at any meeting of the Association by consent of three-fourths of the 
members present. Voting on resolutions, amendments, or revisions shall proceed as provided by 
Sections 3 5 and 4 6 of this Article. 

Rationale:  Staff recommended that the deadline for submitting requests for amendments, 
revisions, and resolutions be changed from 30 to 120 days prior to any membership meeting to 
provide the Legal Affairs Committee sufficient time to review and develop the required analysis 
and for staff to provide adequate notice to the members as set forth in Article 9, Sections 3 and 
4 of the bylaws. Note: Staff typically notifies ACWA members at least 45 days prior to a given 
membership meeting to allow the member agency boards adequate time to designate their 
authorized voting representative. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis:  This proposed revision is clear and meets its intended purpose. 
However, workgroup members did express some concern that the 120-day submission 
requirement may unduly limit the Association’s ability to quickly respond to state or federal 
legislative or administrative acts appropriately. A supermajority of the Association may vote to 
suspend the requirement, however, it may be advisable to require only 90-days for submission 
while retaining the general Association distribution timing of no later than 10-days and no 
earlier than 90-days prior to presentation at an Association meeting.  

Staff Response:  Staff revised the proposed amendment to state 90 days instead of 120 days in 
response to the LAC Workgroup’s analysis. 

The Board of Directors recommends adoption of the proposed amendments to ACWA’s Bylaws through 
a vote of the membership. 

Webinar on Proposed Amendments to Bylaws 
ACWA staff is hosting a webinar on Tuesday, November 7, at 10:00 a.m. in advance of the membership 
meeting to answer any questions members may have pertaining to the proposed amendments to the 
bylaws. Please register for the webinar at the link listed below: 

Please register for Bylaws Webinar on Nov 07, 2017 10:00 AM PST at:  
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/18153322847132675 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the 
webinar. 
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Membership Voting Process 

ACWA will issue each member agency present one proxy card for voting purposes based on the 
designated voting representative identified by the member agency on the proxy designation form. The 
designated voting representative is required to register and sign as the proxy holder to receive the proxy 
card. Proxy cards will only be available for pick-up on Wednesday, November 29, between 9:00 a.m. 
and 12:00 p.m. at the ACWA General Session Desk in the main foyer outside of the Marquis Ballroom 
Center, Marriott Anaheim. The luncheon and General Session Membership Meeting will be held in the 
Platinum Ballroom 1-6. 

To expedite the sign-in process at the ACWA General Session Desk, please indicate your voting delegate 
on the enclosed proxy designation form and return it by email (donnap@acwa.com) or fax 
(916-325-4857) at your earliest convenience prior to conference. If there is a last minute change of 
delegate, please let us know before the meeting date by contacting ACWA’s Clerk of the Board, 
Donna Pangborn, at 916-441-4545 or donnap@acwa.com. 

If you have any questions regarding this process, please contact Clerk of the Board Donna Pangborn at 
the ACWA office at 916-441-4545 or donnap@acwa.com. 

dgp 

Enclosures: 

1. General Session/Election Procedures 
2. Proposed ACWA Bylaws Amendments – Redline Version 
3. Proxy Designation Form 
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(As amended by the Members on December 2, 2015) 

 

ARTICLE 1 – GENERAL 

Section 1. Name. The name of this California nonprofit corporation shall be the Association of California 
Water Agencies (hereinafter referred to as the Association). 

Section 2. Principal Office. The principal office for the transaction of business of the Association is 
located at 910 K Street, Suite 100, Sacramento, California; provided, however, that the Board of 
Directors may change the location of the principal office by resolution and without amendment of these 
bylaws. 

Section 3. Purposes. The purposes of the Association shall be to work together with its members and 
others for the best interests of California and its citizens and landowners who use, need and depend 
upon water; to encourage the orderly development of the waters of the state; to seek means of 
obtaining and making available to all of California a dependable water supply of the best possible quality 
at the lowest possible cost, giving due consideration to environmental factors involved therein; to 
provide inspiration and leadership in meeting and solving the water supply problems of this state; to 
propose and advocate such policies and measures—local, state and federal—that serve the best 
interests of the Association, opposing those of contrary nature; to assist in promoting the health, safety 
and welfare of the employees of its members; and to do all other things that are in the best interests of 
its members. 
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ARTICLE 2 – MEMBERSHIP AND DUES 

Section 1. Membership. 

A. Members. Only a public district, public agency, or public organization created and operated for 
the purpose of controlling, treating, developing, acquiring, using or supplying water for any 
purpose for inhabitants or lands within the state of California, or for the protection, drainage or 
reclamation of lands within the state of California, may become a member of the Association. 
Such an entity will become a member upon written application, approval by the Board of 
Directors, and the payment of the required dues. Acceptance to membership shall authorize full 
participation in Association activities. Except as otherwise provided in subsection (B) below, in 
no case may an organization other than a state, a political subdivision (as defined in § 1.103-1(b) 
of the Income Tax Regulations) of a state or an entity the income of which is excluded from 
gross income under § 115 of the Internal Revenue Code be a member of the Association. 

B. Honorary Life Members. Any person who has rendered conspicuous service in furthering the 
purposes of the Association may, by vote of the Board of Directors, be granted an honorary life 
membership in the Association without payment of dues or assessments. All past presidents of 
the Association shall automatically be honorary life members without vote of the Board of 
Directors. Honorary life members shall not be entitled to a vote or to hold office automatically 
because of their status as honorary life members. 

C. Termination of Members. Membership shall cease upon the failure of any member to pay the 
dues provided for in Section 2 of this Article. The membership of any member may be 
terminated at any time by such member sending written notification of its intention to withdraw 
to the Association’s principal office. The Board of Directors may terminate the membership of 
any member upon 30 days’ written notice by first-class mail when it is determined at any regular 
Board meeting or at any special Board meeting called for that purpose that continuance of such 
membership would not be in the best interests of the Association. Withdrawal or termination of 
membership ends any participation in Association activities and shall terminate a member’s 
interest in the Association’s assets. 

Section 2. Dues. The annual dues of each member of the Association shall be established by the Board 
of Directors; provided, however, that any member may apply for a change in its dues because of 
conditions that differentiate such applicant from other members. 

Section 3. Liability of Members. No member shall be liable for any obligation incurred by the 
Association with the following exception: (1) the payment of the annual dues while it remains a 
member; and (2) the payment of emergency assessments, which shall not exceed 10 percent of current 
annual dues for each member in any calendar year while it remains a member. No emergency 
assessment may be levied against any member during its first two years of membership in the 
Association. 
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ARTICLE 3 – OFFICERS 

Section 1. President and Vice President. 

A. General. The president and vice president of the Association shall be the elected officers of the 
Association. At the time of their election the president and vice president shall each be an 
elected or appointed member of the governing body or commission (as appropriate) of a 
member agency of the Association. The president and vice president shall be elected by the 
members of the Association at its fall conference in each odd-numbered year, shall take office 
on January 1 of the calendar year following election, and shall hold office until such time as their 
successors take office or are appointed. An elected president shall not be permitted to succeed 
himself/herself to that office. Except as provided in this Article, should vacancies occur in either 
office of the president or vice president, the Board of Directors shall appoint persons to fill such 
offices for the unexpired terms thereof. 

B. President. The president shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors, the Executive 
Committee, and the general membership; shall appoint members of all committees, including 
the chair and vice chair of each, upon recommendation from members and regions (as 
communicated by the region chairs), with each such committee chair and vice chair ratified by 
the Board of Directors; and shall perform all other duties necessary to carry out the functions of 
the office. The president shall be a non-voting ex officio member of each committee, but shall 
not be an ex officio member of the Nominating Committee or the region boards. 

The president may be expelled from office with or without cause, upon the satisfaction of the 
following two events: (1) a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors; and (2) a subsequent 
simple majority vote of the members of the Association during a meeting of the membership. 

C. Vice President. The vice president shall, in the absence of the president, assume all of the duties 
of that office and, if a vacancy occurs, succeed thereto for the unexpired term. The vice 
president shall sit as a member of the Executive Committee of the ACWA Joint Powers Insurance 
Authority and shall perform such other duties as assigned by the president. 

Section 2. Executive Director/Secretary and Controller/Treasurer. 

A. General. The executive director/secretary and controller/treasurer of the Association shall also 
be officers of the Association. The executive director/secretary shall be appointed by and hold 
office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors of the Association. 

B. Executive Director/Secretary. The executive director/secretary shall: (1) advise and assist the 
Board of Directors, all committees, the boards of each region, and the workgroups of each 
region; (2) be responsible for administering the total operations of the Association; (3) employ, 
direct, and release all employed staff in accordance with the policies adopted by the Board of 
Directors and consistent with the budget adopted by the Board of Directors; (4) provide relevant 
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information to the Board of Directors needed by the Board to take actions; (5) give members 
notice and record minutes of all meetings of the membership, Board of Directors, and Executive 
Committee; and (6) have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be provided 
and assigned by the Board of Directors directly or through the president of the Board or the 
Executive Committee. The executive director/secretary, with the assistance of the 
controller/treasurer, shall render a report to the Board of Directors at the first meeting 
following the close of each calendar year showing the membership of the Association, the 
receipts and expenditures during the year, and the work accomplished during the previous year. 

C. Controller/Treasurer. The controller/treasurer shall report to and act under the direction of the 
executive director/secretary. The controller/treasurer shall be a signatory on all accounts held 
by the Association and shall act as a fiduciary for all assets of the Association. 

ARTICLE 4 – BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 1. Membership. The Board of Directors shall consist of: 

A. The Association president and vice president. 

B. The chair and vice chair of each region. 

C. The chair of each standing committee. 

D. The most immediate active past president. 

E. The vice president of the ACWA/Joint Powers Insurance Authority. 

Section 2. Term of Office. The term of office of all members of the Board of Directors shall commence 
on January 1 of the calendar year following election of the president and vice president, except for those 
persons who serve on the Board of Directors by nature of their position as chairs of standing 
committees, whose terms shall instead commence upon their ratification by the Board of Directors. 
Except as provided in Article 4, Section 11, the term of office for all members of the Board of Directors 
shall terminate on December 31 of the following odd-numbered year two years later, or until their 
successors take office. 

Section 3. Attendance Requirement. Any member of the Board of Directors who misses two 
consecutive regular Board meetings without being excused by the Board will no longer be a member of 
the Board of Directors. 

Section 4. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held bimonthly at such 
times and places as the Board may determine. 

Section 5. Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the president upon the president’s own 
volition or shall be called by the president when requested in writing by five directors. Prior to 
conducting such a special meeting, the president shall consult with the Executive Committee to ensure 
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that adequate information is available to the Board of Directors for any necessary decisions; and where 
such meeting is called upon the president’s own volition, the president shall also consult with the 
Executive Committee as to the necessity of the special meeting. Notice for special meetings shall be 
provided in the following manner: (1) upon 10 days’ written notice sent by mail to each director and 
addressed to each at the address as shown upon the records of the Association; or (2) upon 48 hours’ 
notice with notice provided by electronic means. When the meeting is called upon the president’s own 
volition, the president shall choose the form of notice; when the meeting is called by a request of five 
directors, the five directors shall choose the form of notice and the president shall promptly call the 
meeting. No business except those items described in the notice shall be transacted at any special 
meeting, except by consent of three-fourths of the members of the Board of Directors present. 

Section 6. Meeting Requirements and Quorums. Any meeting, regular or special, may be held in person 
or by telephone conference, web video conference, or other electronic video screen communication or 
electronic transmission. At any meeting of the Board of Directors, the attendance of 50 percent of the 
voting members of the Board of Directors, or their permitted alternates as specified in these bylaws, 
shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business. The Board may hold a closed session for 
discussion of personnel matters or enforcement of violations of the code of conduct. 

Section 7. Alternates. Each region shall designate an alternate for each chair and vice chair, who shall 
meet the qualification requirements for chair and vice chair, to act at meetings of the Board of Directors 
when the chair or vice chair is unable to attend. The vice chair of each standing committee will be the 
alternate to act at meetings of the Board of Directors when the chair is unable to attend. An alternate 
may not act or vote on behalf of more than one member of the Board of Directors. A member of the 
Board of Directors may not act as an alternate for any other member. 

Section 8. Vacancies for Standing Committee Chairs and Vice Chairs. Should a vacancy occur in the 
office of any standing committee chair or vice chair before the end of the term, the president shall 
appoint a new committee chair or vice chair to fulfill the unexpired term of such committee chair or vice 
chair subject to ratification by the Board of Directors. A vacancy in the office of any such standing 
committee chair or vice chair as described in the previous sentence shall be deemed to exist when the 
chair or vice chair: (1) resigns the office; (2) no longer is an officer, employee, or member of the 
governing body of a member agency of the Association, or other representative duly designated by a 
member agency of the Association to represent that member; or (3) is otherwise removed by a member 
agency of the Association. 

Section 9. Duties, Authorities, and Delegation. Subject to the provisions and limitations of California 
Nonprofit Corporation Law, other applicable laws, and the provisions of these bylaws, the Association’s 
activities and affairs are to be exercised by or under the direction of the Association’s Board of Directors. 
The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall supervision, control, and direction of the 
Association. The Board of Directors shall: (1) employ and release the executive director/secretary; (2) set 
performance expectations for the executive director/secretary; (3) receive, review, and consider 
approval of executive director/secretary recommended compensation, other terms and conditions of 
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employment, and annual evaluations as prepared by the Executive Committee; (4) annually adopt a 
budget; and (5) set the level of dues for the Association. Except as to the duties listed in the previous 
sentence, and subject to Article 3, Section 2, the Board of Directors may delegate the supervision, 
control, and direction of the Association’s affairs to any person or group, including a committee, 
provided the Association Board retains ultimate responsibility for the actions of such person or group. 
Where such powers are delegated, the delegation shall be documented in writing. 

Section 10. Immediate Past President. The immediate past president automatically assumes this 
position after serving as the Association’s elected president and is a voting member of the Board of 
Directors and Executive Committee. The term of office for the immediate past president shall 
commence on January 1 of the calendar year following election of the president and vice president and 
shall terminate on December 31 of the following odd-numbered year two years later. In the event the 
most immediate active past president is unavailable to serve, the most recent and available active past 
president in succession shall serve in this capacity. 

Section 11. Code of Conduct of Board Members. 

A. Code of Conduct: Purpose and Adoption. The Board of Directors shall establish, and update as 
appropriate, a code of conduct for its Directors that recognizes the Association’s commitment of 
integrity, respect, and fair representation to its members and the public they serve and 
establishes minimum ethical standards for the performance of the duties of office. The code 
shall be consistent with the procedural processes contained in this section. The code shall be 
distributed to all new Directors and shall be distributed annually to all members of the 
Association. 

B. Violations and Enforcement Process. A violation of the code of conduct may result in removal, 
public censure, or private reprimand of a Director, or such other action as contained in the code 
of conduct. However, removal and public censure shall be reserved only for serious violations. A 
Director may not be removed or publically censured absent an affirmative vote of two-thirds of 
the voting members of the Board of Directors. A Director may be privately reprimanded for a 
violation of the code of conduct upon the majority vote of the quorum. Complaints of violation 
of the code of conduct may be filed with the president, or the vice-president if the allegations 
are made against the president. The president may refer a complaint of violation to the 
executive director/secretary for investigation. The executive director/secretary may retain a 
special investigator or special counsel to conduct or assist the investigation. A Director accused 
of a violation shall be provided a copy of the complaint. A Director that takes any hostile or 
retaliatory action, directly or indirectly, against a complainant is subject to removal from the 
Board in conformance with the process identified above. Prior to scheduling a Board action on a 
complaint, the president shall consult with the Executive Committee and the chair of the Legal 
Affairs Committee. A Director accused of a violation of the code of conduct shall be provided at 
least 15 days’ written notice of any meeting of the Board at which a determination of 
enforcement will be considered. A determination of enforcement may be made only at a regular 
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meeting of the Board and shall be made in closed session. The determinations of the Board 
under this section shall not be admissible in any criminal or civil proceeding brought against the 
Director for conduct that violates any other law. 

ARTICLE 5 – REGIONS 

Section 1. Boundaries of Each Region. 

A. There shall be a maximum of 10 regions within the state. The Board of Directors shall determine 
the regional boundaries. Insofar as is practicable, the regions shall have a numerical balance in 
members of the Association; make geographic sense; and promote regional problem solving. 

B. A member of the Association may file a written petition to the Board of Directors requesting a 
change in regions. Such petition shall set forth the reasons for such requested change. The 
Board shall, within a reasonable time, act upon such petition and set forth the reasons for its 
action. Such action by the Board shall be based on factors in (A) above, as well as others deemed 
by the Board of Directors to be relevant to the decision. 

Section 2. Officers. 

A. The officers of each region shall be a chair and vice chair and three to five region board 
members who shall be elected by the region by September 30, or the preceding Friday if 
September 30 falls on a weekend, of odd-numbered years.  A region may maintain a board of 
fewer than five but not less than three members as provided in the region’s rules and 
regulations. The officers of the region board shall take office on January 1 of the calendar year 
following election and shall hold office for two years, or until their successors take office. 
Regions shall hold elections by electronic ballot. ACWA staff shall verify the legitimacy of the 
ballots. 

B. The officers of each region shall: (1) exercise the powers and perform duties of the region during 
the interim between region meetings; and (2) make recommendations to the president 
regarding appointments to committees. The chair and vice chair shall be the region’s 
representatives to the ACWA Board of Directors. 

C. Each officer of a region shall be an officer, employee, or member of the governing body of a 
member agency of the Association, or other representative duly designated by a member 
agency of the Association to represent that member at the time of the appointment. Where an 
individual ceases to meet these criteria during the term of the office, the individual may not 
serve during the remaining term of that office unless that individual can again meet the criteria 
for the office and is appointed to complete the term. The region board may adopt more 
stringent criteria for board member qualifications as part of the region’s rules and regulations. 

D. Should a vacancy occur in any of the region board positions before the end of the term, the 
remaining members of the region board shall appoint a new member. A vacancy in the office of 
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any region board position shall be deemed to exist when a region board member: (1) resigns the 
office; (2) no longer is an officer, employee, or member of the governing body of a member 
agency of the Association, or other representative duly designated by a member of the 
Association to represent that member; or (3) is otherwise removed by a member agency of the 
Association. 

Section 3. Nominating Committees. There shall be a nominating committee for each region consisting 
of three or more designees, each representing a member of the Association located within the region, 
appointed by the chair of the region and approved by the region board. Nominating committees shall be 
formed by February 28 of each odd-numbered year. The nominating committee shall announce its 
nominations for chair, vice chair, and region board members by August 1 of an election year. All regions 
must complete the election process by September 30 of the election year, or the preceding Friday if the 
September 30 falls on a weekend. 

Section 4. Meetings. The meetings of each region shall be held at both the spring and fall conferences 
and at such other times and places as may be determined by the region chair. Representatives of five or 
more members of the Association from the region present at any region meeting shall constitute a 
quorum for purposes of conducting the business of the region. Any meeting, regular or special, may be 
held in person or by telephone conference, web video conference, or other electronic video screen 
communication or electronic transmission. 

Section 5. Workgroups. Workgroups may be appointed by the region chair as needed. 

Section 6. Rules. Each region shall organize and adopt rules and regulations for the conduct of its 
meetings and affairs not inconsistent with the Articles of Incorporation or bylaws of the Association. 
Each region shall abide by the code of conduct adopted by the Board of Directors of the Association. 

ARTICLE 6 – EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Section 1. Membership. There shall be an Executive Committee consisting of the following: the 
president of the Association, who shall be the chair thereof; the vice president; the most immediate 
active past president; the chair of the Finance Committee; and three at-large representatives selected 
from and by the members of the Board of Directors. The election of the three at-large representatives to 
the Executive Committee shall occur at the first Board of Directors meeting held in each even-numbered 
year and the elected representatives shall serve immediately following their election and until such time 
as their successors take office. To the extent practical, the Executive Committee should be constituted 
so as to reflect the geographic extent of the Association and the functions of the members of the 
Association. 

Section 2. Powers. The Executive Committee shall have the following authority: 

A. Personnel. Subject to the budget adopted by the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee 
shall perform the following personnel actions: (1) recommend compensation for the executive 
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director/secretary to the Board of Directors for approval; (2) perform annual reviews of the 
executive director/secretary and submit that review to the Board of Directors; (3) review and 
approve the classification and compensation plan and publicly posted salary schedule for 
Association employees submitted by the executive director/secretary, which shall be reviewable 
by the Board of Directors, in closed session, upon request of the Board of Directors; (4) establish 
personnel policies for the conduct and behavior of employees, which shall be reviewable by the 
Board of Directors; and (5) undertake such other personnel actions as may be requested by the 
executive director/secretary in support of his or her oversight of all other personnel matters, 
which shall be reviewable by the Board of Directors, in closed session, upon request of the 
Board of Directors. 

B. Delegation. The Executive Committee may act pursuant to any authority specifically delegated 
to it by the Board of Directors. The delegation shall indicate whether the authority is still subject 
to the ultimate authority of the Board. 

C. Authority to Act Between Meetings. The Executive Committee may act for the Board of 
Directors between Board meetings when calling a special meeting of the Board of Directors is 
impracticable, provided that no such action of the Executive Committee shall be binding on the 
Board of Directors until authorized or approved by the Board. The Executive Committee has the 
authority to authorize actions recommended by the Legal Affairs Committee (such as the filing 
of letter briefs and amicus curiae briefs) by electronic means without the need for an in-person 
or telephonic meeting, but such actions shall be ratified by the Board of Directors at its next 
meeting. 

Section 3. Reporting. The president, or any person designated by the president, shall report to the 
Board of Directors, at each regular Board meeting, any action taken by the Executive Committee since 
the last preceding regular Board meeting. The minutes of Executive Committee meetings, which at that 
time may still be in draft form, shall be mailed (using the U.S. Postal Service, express delivery, electronic 
means, or otherwise) to each member of the Board of Directors at least five days prior to Board 
meetings, except in cases in which the Executive Committee meets during or immediately prior to a 
conference of the Association or immediately prior to a Board meeting, in which case the minutes, 
which may still be in draft form, shall be mailed to each director promptly thereafter. 

Section 4. Meetings. The Executive Committee shall hold regularly scheduled meetings as set by the 
president. Special meetings of the Executive Committee may be called by the president upon notice to 
the members of that committee or upon written request of three Executive Committee members. 
Notice for special Executive Committee meetings shall be provided to the entire Board: (1) upon five 
days’ written notice sent by mail, or (2) upon 24 hours’ notice with notice provided by electronic means; 
and all such meetings shall be open to the Board of Directors. Any meeting, regular or special, may be 
held in person or by telephone conference, web video conference or other electronic video screen 
communication or electronic transmission. All members of the Board of Directors may attend any 
meeting of the Executive Committee. Meetings of the Executive Committee may be closed to others at 
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the discretion of the President or committee.  Only members of the Executive Committee are allowed to 
vote on matters at a meeting of the committee. 

Section 5. Minutes. The minutes of the Executive Committee meetings shall be kept by the executive 
director/secretary at the Association’s principal office. Actions of the Executive Committee shall be 
reported to the Board of Directors as provided in Section 3 of this Article and shall be available to any 
member of the Board of Directors upon request to the executive director/secretary. 

ARTICLE 7 – STANDING COMMITTEES 

Section 1. Qualification. In order to serve on any ACWA standing committee, an individual must be an 
officer, employee, or member of the governing body of a member agency of the Association, or other 
representative duly designated by a member agency of the Association to represent that member at the 
time of the appointment. Where an individual ceases to meet these criteria during the term of the 
appointment, the individual may not serve during the remaining term of that appointment unless that 
individual can again meet the criteria for appointment and is appointed to complete the term. 

Section 2. Term of Office. The term of office of standing committee members shall be two years 
commencing on January 1 of each even-numbered year. The term of office of standing committee chairs 
and vice chairs shall be approximately two years and shall commence as soon after January 1 of the 
even-numbered year as they may be appointed by the president and ratified by the then-seated Board 
of Directors, and shall terminate on December 31 of the odd-numbered year approximately two years 
later or until their successors are appointed and ratified. 

Section 3. Meetings. Meetings of standing committees may be called at such times and places 
designated by the respective chair thereof except where provided otherwise by these bylaws. Subject to 
the provisions of these bylaws and any actions that may be taken by the Board of Directors, the chairs of 
each standing committee may establish their own rules for the efficient operation of the committee 
they each chair. The chairs of each standing committee are authorized to create subcommittees and 
workgroups in order to complete the work of the committee. 

Section 4. Committee Composition. Each limited standing committee shall have a membership 
composition that is comprised of members in the quantity and with qualifications as defined by the 
provisions of these bylaws. The committee chair position shall not be included in the maximum count 
for determining the committee composition total of any given limited committee. The committee chair 
shall, however, be a voting member of their respective committees subject to the rules and procedures 
of each committee. 

Rationale:  Staff is recommending this amendment to the Bylaws to allow the President 
flexibility in appointing members to limited standing committees and to provide an odd number 
committee composition total. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis:  The proposed revision is clear and meets its intended purpose. 
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Committee Composition Terms in Sections 5 through 17. 

Rationale: Review of Committee Composition Terms: Staff noted that the use of the term 
“individual” versus “representative” (and one instance of “member”) was inconsistent 
throughout the committee composition description for each of the standing committees in 
Article 7. Staff asked the LAC Workgroup to review Section 1, Qualifications, as well as each of 
the committee descriptions to make a determination as to which term would best apply for all 
of the committees for purposes of consistency throughout Article 7. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis: Reading of the various ACWA committee sections suggests that 
“Member” would be the most appropriate word for consistency throughout the By-Laws. 
However, the use of a single term, may require some minor revisions to surrounding text for 
clarity (for an example see Section 15 (State Legislative Committee) where “member” is 
separately used to denote a “member agency” and so would need to state “member-agency” 
consistently to accommodate the more general use of “member” throughout the By-Laws). 

Staff Response:  Staff revised the terms in the committee sections to “member” for consistency 
and the surrounding language where needed in response to the LAC Workgroup’s analysis. 

Section 5. Agriculture Committee. There shall be an Agriculture Committee whose duty it shall be to 
recommend Association policy, positions and programs to the Board of Directors, State Legislative 
Committee, Federal Affairs Committee or other committees, as appropriate, regarding agricultural 
issues affecting the interests of ACWA and its members. The committee shall consist of at least one 
member from each region. 

Rationale:  The 2016-2017 Business and Strategic Plan initiative to increase involvement and 
engagement from ACWA’s agricultural members has successfully generated momentum 
amongst ACWA’s agricultural members and a renewed attention to and involvement in key 
policy issues that uniquely affect agricultural water suppliers. Amidst this success, a concern has 
arisen that the momentum could be lost once the Board of Directors finishes its current term 
and the initiative sunsets. This concern has sparked the suggestion that ACWA should consider 
creating an Agriculture Committee as the thirteenth standing committee of the Association to 
continue the objectives of the Ag Initiative long-term. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis:  The proposed revision is clean and meets its intended purpose. 

Section 4 6. Business Development Committee. There shall be a Business Development Committee 
whose duty it is to develop and recommend to the Board of Directors programs and activities to be 
provided or administered by the Association that generate non-dues revenue and provide a service or 
benefit to Association membersmember agencies. The committee shall consist of at least one 
representative member from each region and one representativemay include members from the any of 
the other standing committees. 
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Section 5 7. Communications Committee. There shall be a Communications Committee whose duty it 
shall be to develop and make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding a comprehensive 
internal and external communications program for the Association and to promote development of 
sound public information and education programs and practices among members of the Association 
agencies. The committee shall consist of no more than 40 individualsmembers. Of that number,The 
committee shall consist of at least one individual member shall be from each region. 

Section 6 8. Energy Committee. There shall be an Energy Committee whose duty it shall be to 
recommend policies and programs to the Board of Directors and to the State Legislative Committee 
and/or Federal Affairs Committee as appropriate. The committee shall consist of at least one 
representative member from each region. 

Section 7 9. Federal Affairs Committee. There shall be a Federal Affairs Committee whose duty it shall 
be to review all federal legislative proposals and regulatory proposals affecting members of the 
Associationmember agencies, after consulting with other appropriate committees, and to develop 
Association positions consistent with existing policy, where it has been established; recommend 
sponsorship of bills that will resolve problems or improve conditions for members of the Association 
agencies; and assist in the establishment of the Association’s federal legislative program. The committee 
shall consist of at least one and, but no more than five individuals members from each region. 

Section 8 10. Finance Committee. There shall be a Finance Committee whose duty it shall be to make 
recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding annual budgets, dues formula and schedules and 
other revenue-producing income, annual audit and selection of an auditor, and investment strategies. 
The committee shall consist of the president and vice president of the Association as ex officio 
members, the Finance Committee chair, one membereither the chair or vice chair from each of the 
Association’s of the region board from each of the Association’s 10 regions boards (either chair or vice 
chair), and one additional representative member from each region with experience in financial matters. 

Section 9 11. Groundwater Committee. There shall be a Groundwater Committee whose duty it shall be 
to recommend policies and programs to the Board of Directors and to the State Legislative Committee 
and/or Federal Affairs Committee as appropriate. The committee shall consist of at least one 
representative member from each region. 

Section 10 12. Legal Affairs Committee. There shall be a Legal Affairs Committee whose duty it shall be 
to support the mission of the Association, and more particularly to deal with requests for assistance 
involving legal matters of significance to members of the Association agencies, including but not limited 
to state and federal court litigation, water rights matters, selected regulatory and resources agency 
matters, proposed bylaw revisions, review of legislation as requested by the State Legislative 
Committee, etc. The committee shall consider matters and issues submitted to it in order to determine 
which ones are of major significance to the members of the Association agencies and, assuming a 
finding of major significance, recommend to the Board of Directors the position(s) which the committee 
believes the Association should take with respect thereto. The committee shall be composed of 
between 35 34 and 45 44 attorneys, each of whom shall be a member of the California Bar and shall be, 
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or act as, counsel for a member of the Associationagency, representing diverse interests within the 
Association, including but not limited to, different geographical areas throughout the state, large and 
small agencies, agricultural and urban agencies, agencies created under the various enabling statutes, 
etc. Further, there shall be at least one representative from each region on the committeeThe 
committee shall consist of at least one member from each region. 

Rationale: Change the committee composition range so there is a resulting odd number total 
when the chair is added. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis:  Considered together with the general change in Section 4, Committee 
Composition above, this change accomplishes its purposes and maintains the current overall 
LAC membership numbers. 

Section 11 13. Local Government Committee. There shall be a Local Government Committee whose 
duty it shall be to recommend policies to the State Legislative Committee, as appropriate, and Board of 
Directors on matters affecting water agencies as a segment of local government in California. The 
committee shall consist of at least one, and but no more than three individuals members from each 
region. 

Section 12 14. Membership Committee. There shall be a Membership Committee whose duty it shall be 
to assist staff in developing membership recruitment and retention programs, make recommendations 
to the Board of Directors regarding membership policies, eligibility, and applications for membership 
and review and make recommendations to the Finance Committee regarding an equitable dues 
structure. The committee shall consist of at least one member from each region. 

Section 13 15. State Legislative Committee. There shall be a State Legislative Committee whose duty it 
shall be to review all state legislative proposals affecting members of the Association agencies and to 
establish Association positions, consistent with existing policy, where it has been established; sponsor 
bills that will resolve problems or improve conditions for member s of the Associationagencies; and 
assist in the establishment of the Association’s legislative program. The committee shall consist of 
individuals members representing a variety of types of members member agencies and at least one and, 
but no more than four individuals members from each region. 

Section 14 16. Water Management Committee. There shall be a Water Management Committee whose 
duty it shall be to recommend policy and programs to the Board of Directors on any area of concern in 
water management. The committee shall consist of at least one, but  and no more than four individuals 
members from each region. 

Section 15 17. Water Quality Committee. There shall be a Water Quality Committee whose duty it shall 
be to develop and recommend Association policy, positions, and programs to the Board of Directors, to 
promote cost-effective state and federal water quality regulations that protect the public health, to 
enable interested members of the Association agencies to join together to develop and coordinate with 
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other organizations, and to present unified comments regarding agricultural and domestic water quality 
regulations. The committee shall consist of at least one individual member from each region. 

ARTICLE 8 – SPECIAL COUNCILS, COMMITTEES, AND TASK FORCES 

Section 1. Council of Past Presidents. There shall be a Council of Past Presidents composed of all past 
presidents of the Association who serve on the council until each is no longer able to or wishes to serve. 
The council shall provide a mechanism for past presidents to continue to make valuable contributions to 
the Association. With approval of the Board of Directors, the president and/or executive 
director/secretary may assign specific responsibilities to the council from time to time. Members of the 
Council of Past Presidents are invited to attend and participate in the Association’s Board meetings. 

Section 2. Nominating Committee. There shall be a Nominating Committee consisting of five or more 
persons appointed by the president prior to the Association’s fall conference in each odd-numbered 
year, whose purpose shall be to nominate qualified individuals for the offices of president and vice 
president of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall publish its nominations for the offices of 
president and vice president of the Association not less than 10 or more than 90 days before the 
membership meeting is held at fall conference. Additional nominations may be made by any member of 
the Association for candidates for the office of president and vice president. Additional nominations 
shall be made from the floor during the election of president and vice president at the membership 
meeting scheduled for said purposes. 

Section 3. Other Committees and Task Forces. Other committees and task forces may be appointed by 
the president from time to time as needed, consistent with and supportive of the mission of the 
Association. 

ARTICLE 9 – MEETINGS OF MEMBERS 

Section 1. Meetings. Meetings of the members of the Association shall be held at the Association’s 
conferences at such times as may be determined by the Board of Directors to conduct necessary 
business and to elect the president and vice president, which occurs at the fall conference in each odd-
numbered year. 

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members of the Association may be called by the 
Board of Directors, the president of the Board of Directors, or by 5 percent or more of the members of 
the Association. Except when called by the Board, a request for a special meeting must be in writing and 
must be delivered in person or mailed by first-class mail addressed to the president of the Board at the 
principal office of the Association, with a copy to the executive director/secretary. The request must 
state the general nature of the business proposed to be transacted at the meeting. 

A special meeting that has been called by written request of 5 percent of the member agencies of the 
Association to the Board of Directors shall be set by the Board of Directors on a date that is not less than 
35 or more than 90 days after receipt of the request.  
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Section 3. Notice Requirements for Membership Meetings. Written notice of any membership meeting 
shall be given to each voting member of the Association. The notice shall state the date, time, and place 
of the meeting; the means by which members may participate; and the general nature of the business to 
be transacted. The notice of any meeting at which Board officers are to be formally nominated and 
elected shall include the names of the recommended slate of candidates for the offices of president and 
vice president in addition to the election procedures. The member notification information shall also be 
posted on the Association’s website. 

Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws or California law, a written notice of regular membership 
meetings shall be given not less than 10 or more than 90 days before the date of the meeting to each 
member who, on the record date for notice of the meeting, is entitled to vote; provided, however, that 
if notice is given by mail, and the notice is not mailed by first-class, registered, or certified mail, that 
notice shall be given not less than 20 days before the meeting. 

Section 4. Notice Requirements for Special Meetings. The executive director/secretary shall cause 
notice to be given to all members of the Association of the date, time, and place of the meeting and the 
general nature of the business to be transacted at the meeting. No business except that specified in the 
request and notice may be transacted at said special meeting. If notice of the requested special meeting 
is not given within 20 days after receipt of the request, the person or persons requesting the meeting 
may give the notice. 

Section 5. Voting. Each member of the Association shall be entitled to one vote that shall be cast by its 
authorized representative. All questions, except amendments or revisions of these bylaws, shall be 
determined by a majority of the members present and voting. A roll call may be requested by any 
representative. 

Section 6. Amendment of Bylaws. These bylaws may be amended or revised by two-thirds of the 
member agencies of the Association present and voting at any meeting. 

Section 7. Quorums. The presence of the authorized representative of 50 members of the Association at 
any meeting of the members shall constitute a quorum for transacting business. 

Section 8. Amendments, Revisions, and Resolutions. Before any amendments or revisions to the 
bylaws, or resolutions, may be considered at any meeting of the Association, any such amendment, 
revision, or resolution shall be submitted to the executive director/secretary at least 30 90 days prior to 
the first day of such meeting. The executive director/secretary shall promptly distribute any proposed 
amendments or revisions to the Legal Affairs Committee for the Legal Affairs Committee to develop an 
unbiased analysis of the amendments or revisions. Following development of an analysis for the 
proposed amendments or revisions, the executive director/secretary shall distribute copies of any 
resolutions, amendments or revisions, including any applicable analyses, to all members of the 
Association at least five not less than 10 days or more than 90 days prior to presentation at such 
meeting. The written notice of the membership meeting shall be given to each voting member of the 
Association consistent with the provisions defined in Section 3. The 30 90-day rule may be suspended at 
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any meeting of the Association by consent of three-fourths of the members present. Voting on 
resolutions, amendments, or revisions shall proceed as provided by Sections 3 5 and 4 6 of this Article. 

Staff Rationale: Staff is recommended that the deadline for submitting requests for 
amendments, revisions, and resolutions be changed from 30 to 120 days prior to any 
membership meeting to provide Legal Affairs Committee sufficient time to review and develop 
the required analysis and for staff to provide adequate notice to the members as set forth in 
Article 9, Sections 3 and 4 of the Bylaws. Note: Staff typically notifies ACWA members at least 45 
prior to a given membership meeting to allow the agency boards to designate their authorized 
representative. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis:  This proposed revision is clear and meets its intended purpose. 
However, subcommittee members did express some concern that the 120-day submission 
requirement may unduly limit the Association’s ability to quickly respond to state or federal 
legislative or administrative acts appropriately. A supermajority of the Association may vote to 
suspend the requirement, however, it may be advisable to require only 90-days for submission 
while retaining the general Association distribution timing of no later than 10-days and no 
earlier than 90-days prior to presentation at an Association meeting.  

Staff Response:  Staff revised the proposed amendment to state 90 days instead of 120 days in 
response to the LAC Workgroup’s analysis. 

Section 9. Nomination of President and Vice President. 

A. Qualification. At the time of their election, the president and vice president of the Association 
shall each be an elected or appointed member of the governing body or commission (as 
appropriate) of a member agency of the Association. 

B. Nominating Committee Process. All nominations for the positions of president and vice 
president shall be accompanied by an official resolution from the Association member agency 
on whose board the nominee serves. Said resolution shall be signed by an authorized signatory 
of the member agency’s Board of Directors. 

C. Nominations from the Floor. Additional nominations may be made by any member of the 
Association for the office of president and vice president. Said nominations and seconds shall be 
made from the floor during the election of the offices of president and vice president at the 
membership meeting scheduled for said purposes (as provided for in the penultimate sentence 
of Article 8, Section 2). Such nominations and seconds shall be made by a member of the 
Association and must be supported by a resolution of the governing body of the member 
making and seconding such nomination. The member agency on whose board the nominee 
serves shall submit a resolution of support if they are not the agency making the floor 
nomination or second. 
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Section 10. Additional Procedures for Election of Officers. The Board shall have the authority to 
develop additional procedures for elections of president and vice president when not otherwise covered 
by these bylaws. 

ARTICLE 10 –INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AND OTHER AGENTS 

Section 1. Right of Indemnity. To the fullest extent permitted by law, this Corporation shall indemnify its 
Directors, Officers, employees, and other persons described in Section 7237(a) of the California 
Corporations Code, including persons formerly occupying any such position, against all expenses, 
judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred by them in 
connection with any “proceeding,” as that term is used in that Section, and including an action by or in 
the right of the Corporation, by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that 
section. "Expenses," as used in this bylaw, shall have the same meaning as in Section 7237(a) of the 
California Corporations Code. 

Section 2. Approval of Indemnity. On written request to the Board by any person seeking 
indemnification under Section 7237(b) or Section 7237(c) of the California Corporations Code, the Board 
shall promptly determine under Section 7237(e) of the California Corporations Code whether the 
applicable standard of conduct set forth in Section 7237(b) or Section 7237(c) has been met and, if so, 
the Board shall authorize indemnification. 

Section 3. Advancement of Expenses. To the fullest extent permitted by law and except as otherwise 
determined by the Board in a specific instance, expenses incurred by a person seeking indemnification 
under these bylaws in defending any proceeding covered by those Sections shall be advanced by the 
Corporation before final disposition of the proceeding, on receipt by the Corporation of an undertaking 
by or on behalf of that person that the advance will be repaid unless it is ultimately determined that the 
person is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation for those expenses. 

Section 4. Insurance. The Corporation shall have the right to purchase and maintain insurance to the full 
extent permitted by law on behalf of its Officers, Directors, employees, and other agents, against any 
liability asserted against or incurred by any officer, director, employee, or agent in such capacity or 
arising out of the officer’s, director’s, employee’s or agent’s status as such. 

ARTICLE 11 – MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 1. Conduct of Meetings. All meetings of the Association shall be conducted in accord with the 
code of conduct and in substantial accordance with the latest edition of Robert’s Rules of Order Newly 
Revised unless the Board adopts alternate rules of conduct for itself and/or its committees, region 
boards, and region workgroups. 

Section 2. Funds. The funds of the Association shall be used to further the aims and purposes of this 
Association. They shall be kept by the controller/treasurer and paid out by checks or other electronic 
means, which shall only be valid with two authorized signatures. The Board of Directors shall designate 
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by resolution which persons, other than the controller/treasurer, may sign for expenditures. The Finance 
Committee shall implement procedures to ensure necessary internal controls over the receipt and 
expenditures of Association funds and arrange for an external audit. Audit reports shall be presented to 
the Board of Directors. 

Section 3. Disposition of Assets upon Dissolution. The Association’s properties and assets are 
irrevocably dedicated to the fulfillment of the Association’s purposes as described in Article 2 of the 
Articles of Incorporation. No part of the Association’s net earnings, properties and assets, on dissolution 
or otherwise, may inure to the benefit of any private person. Upon the dissolution of the Association, all 
debts thereof shall be paid and its affairs settled, and all remaining assets shall be distributed to the 
Association’s member political subdivisions for a public purpose, consistent with the provisions of the 
California Nonprofit Corporation Law relating to public benefit corporations then in effect and with the 
Articles of Incorporation. 

Section 3. Definitions. As used in these bylaws, the term “notice provided by electronic means” shall 
refer to notice given by fax or e-mail. 

Amended comprehensively December 1, 2010 
Amended May 9, 2012 
Amended May 7, 2014 
Amended December 2, 2015 
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GENERAL SESSION/ELECTION PROCEDURES FOR ACWA 2017 FALL CONFERENCE 

The following information is provided to inform the ACWA member agency delegates attending the 2017 Fall Conference of 
the procedures to be used pertaining to the nomination and election of ACWA officers and the vote by the membership on 
proposed amendments to the bylaws during the General Session Membership Meeting. 

PROXY CARDS – (REQUIRED FOR VOTING) 

ACWA will issue each member agency present one proxy card for voting purposes based on the designated voting 
representative identified by the member agency. In order to vote during the General Session Membership Meeting, the 
designated voting representative is required to register and sign as the proxy holder by 12:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 
November 29. Upon registration and sign-in, the voting delegate will receive the required proxy cards. Proxy cards will be 
available for pick-up on Wednesday, November 29, between 9:00 a.m. and 12:00 p.m. at the ACWA General Session Desk 
in the main foyer outside of the Marquis Ballroom Center, Marriott Anaheim. The luncheon and General Session 
Membership Meeting will be held in the Platinum Ballroom 1-6. 

GENERAL SESSION MEMBERSHIP MEETING, WEDNESDAY, NOV. 29 (DOORS OPEN AT 1:05 P.M.) 

1. The General Session Membership Meeting will be called to order at 1:20 p.m. and a quorum will be determined. The 
presence of 50 authorized voting representatives is required to establish a quorum for transacting business. 

2. Legal Affairs Committee Chair Jeni Buckman will provide an overview of the agenda and election procedures. 

3. Nominating Committee Chair John Coleman will present the committee’s report and announce the candidate for ACWA 
President. 

4. President Kathy Tiegs will call for floor nominations for ACWA President. 

5. If there are no floor nominations for President, the election will proceed. President Tiegs will close the nominations and 
delegates will vote by holding up their “Yes” or “No” proxy voting cards. 

6. If there are floor nominations for President, the nomination will follow the procedures established by Article 9 of 
ACWA’s Bylaws, stating floor nominations and seconds must be supported by a resolution of the governing body of the 
member agency making and seconding such nomination. Note: If there are floor nominations, the election of officers 
will proceed during Wednesday’s General Session as outlined below and the proposed bylaws amendments will 
move to the Thursday General Session Membership Meeting as outlined in item 12 below. 

a. Ballots will be distributed to the voting delegates. 

b. Delegates will complete their ballots and place them in the ballot box, which will be centrally located in the 
Platinum Ballroom 1-6 meeting room. 

c. Tellers’ Committee will count the ballots. President Tiegs has appointed the following staff members to serve as the 
Tellers’ Committee: Clerk of the Board Donna Pangborn; Director, Business Development & Events Paula Currie; and 
Executive Assistant Lili Vogelsang. 

d. Legal Affairs Committee Chair Jeni Buckman will serve as the proctor to oversee the ballot counting process. 

e. Candidates are welcome to designate an observer to be present during the ballot counting process. 

f. Results of the ballot count will be announced. Election of ACWA’s officers will be determined by a majority of the 
members present and voting. If any one candidate does not receive a majority of the vote, successive ballot counts 
will be conducted until a candidate is elected, consistent with Robert’s Rules of Order. 
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7. Nominating Committee Chair John Coleman will announce the candidate for ACWA Vice President. 

8. President Kathy Tiegs will call for floor nominations for ACWA Vice President. 

9. If there are no floor nominations for Vice President, the election will proceed. President Tiegs will close the 
nominations and delegates will vote by holding up their “Yes” or “No” proxy voting cards. 

10. If there are floor nominations for Vice President, the nominations will follow the procedures described in item 6 above, 
and the election will proceed according to the steps outlined in 6.a. through 6.f. 

IF THERE ARE NO FLOOR NOMINATIONS FOR THE ELECTION OF OFFICERS, THE WEDNESDAY 
GENERAL SESSION MEMBERSHIP MEETING WILL PROCEED WITH A VOTE ON THE PROPOSED 
AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS. 

11. Legal Affairs Committee Chair Jeni Buckman will provide an overview of the proposed amendments to the bylaws. 

a. Consideration of amendments to the bylaws. 

b. Request for motion / second from the floor to approve the proposed amendments to the bylaws. 

c. Discussion of proposed amendments. 

d. Opportunity for members to offer changes to proposed amendments to the bylaws. Any proposed changes to the 
bylaw amendments as currently proposed require a majority vote of the voting members present. 

e. Call for the question. A two-thirds vote of the members present and voting is required to amend the ACWA Bylaws. 

IF THERE ARE FLOOR NOMINATIONS FOR THE ELECTION OF OFFICERS, THE OVERVIEW AND VOTE 
ON THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS WILL BE TAKEN UP AT THE GENERAL SESSION 
MEMBERSHIP MEETING ON THURSDAY AS FOLLOWS. 

12. The vote by the membership on the proposed amendments to the bylaws will occur at the Thursday, General Session 
Membership Meeting, at the Platinum Ballroom 1-6, Anaheim Marriott, at 1:20 p.m. 

a. The General Session Membership Meeting will be called to order at 1:20 p.m. and a quorum will be determined. 
The presence of 50 formally designated voting representatives is required to establish a quorum for transacting 
business. 

b. Legal Affairs Committee Chair Jeni Buckman will provide an overview of the proposed bylaws amendments. 

c. The meeting will proceed according to the steps outlined 11.a. through 11.e. above. 
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Proxy Designation Form_General Session Fall 2017.Docx 

PROXY DESIGNATION FORM 

ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES 
GENERAL SESSION MEMBERSHIP MEETING(S) 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2017 AT 1:20PM 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2017 AT 1:20PM (IF NEEDED) 

 
TO: Donna Pangborn, Clerk of the Board 
 
EMAIL: donnap@acwa.com 
 
FAX: 916-325-4857 
 
The person designated below will be attending the ACWA General Session Membership Meeting(s) on 
Wednesday, November 29, 2017 (and November 30, 2017 if necessary) as our voting delegate. 

      

 

      
MEMBER AGENCY’S NAME  AGENCY’S TELEPHONE No. 

      

 

 
MEMBER AGENCY’S AUTHORIZING REPRESENTATIVE  SIGNATURE 

      

 

 
DELEGATE’S NAME  SIGNATURE 

      
 

      
DELEGATE’S EMAIL  DELEGATE’S TELEPHONE No. 

             
DELEGATE’S AFFILIATON (if different from assigning agency)1  DATE 

      
1 If your agency designates a delegate from another entity to serve as its authorized voting representative, 
please indicate the delegate’s entity in the appropriate space above. Note: Delegates need to sign the proxy 
form indicating they have accepted the responsibility of carrying the proxy. 

 
REMINDER: Proxy cards will be available for pick up on Wednesday, November 29, between 9:00 a.m. and 
12:00 p.m. at the ACWA General Session Desk in the main foyer outside of the Marquis Ballroom Center, 
Marriott Anaheim. The luncheon and General Session Membership Meeting will be held in the Platinum 
Ballroom 1-6. 
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DRAFT MWDOC BUDGET PROCESS 
MODIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

December November 2017 
• Notification to Member Agencies of start of budget process 

and solicitation of input 
 
January December 2017 

• MWDOC staff begins preparation of budget hours and costs 
on program and line-item basis 

• Review of four month actuals and fiscal year-end projections 
• Review budget adjustments for current fiscal year 
• Preparation of internal budget changes for FY 2018-2019 

 
February January 2018 

• Initial review of budget issues with A&F Committee for 
feedback (1-10-18) 
• Initial discussion of budget issues with Member Agencies for 
feedback 
• Request for Member Agencies’ PRELIMINARY indication of 
participation in CHOICE activities for coming year 
 

March February 2018 
• Publish and post the FIRST DRAFT Budget in the packet for 

the A&F Committee (2-8-18) 
• Review Full Draft Budget with A&F Committee (2-14-18) 
• Formally request comments from all Member Agencies 
• DRAFT information completed on prior year CHOICE WUE 

program benefits to Member Agencies to serve as basis for 
charging agencies for the upcoming year for CHOICE WUE 
activities 

• Member Agencies’ INITIAL CONFIRMATION of participation 
in CHOICE Services by February 15. The Final Updated 
Confirmation by the end of March and Final CHOICE 
services in June 

• Discuss FIRST DRAFT Budget at Member Agency 
Managers’ Meeting (2-22-18) 

• Meet with Member Agencies as requested or scheduled 
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DRAFT MWDOC BUDGET PROCESS 
MODIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

 
April March 2018 

• FINAL REVISED information completed on prior year 
CHOICE WUE benefits to Member Agencies to serve as 
basis of charging agencies for the upcoming year for WUE 
activities 

• Discuss SECOND DRAFT Budget in A&F Committee (3-14-
18) 

• Review SECOND DRAFT Budget at Member Agency 
Managers’ Meeting (3-22-18) 

• Confirm Update CHOICE Participation 
• Member Agencies’ submit Formal Comments about the 

Budget (3-28-18) 
 
May April 2018 

• Conduct meeting with Elected Officials from Member 
Agencies to discuss budget and other topics (4-5-18) 

• THIRD DRAFT Budget and Rates presented to A&F 
Committee (4-11-18) 

• Member Agencies’ Formal Comments presented to A&F 
Committee 

• Board approval of FY2018-19 FINAL Budget and Rates (4-
18-18) 
 

June 2018 
• Member Agencies confirm FINAL CHOICE Participation (6-

15-18) 
 

August 2018 
• Reconciliation of FY 2017-18 WUE & CHOICE Programs 

 
September  2018 

• REVISED FINAL CHOICE Budget presented to A&F 
Committee (9-12-18) 

• Board approval of FY2018-19 REVISED FINAL CHOICE 
Budget (9-19-18) 
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Item 8a 

 1

Administration Activities Report 
October 6, 2017 to November 2, 2017 

 
Activity Summary 

Administration/Board Staff worked on the following: 
• Scheduling meetings for Rob Hunter and other various 

meetings of the Board members. 
• Assisted Rob/Karl with various write ups and follow-up for 

the Committees and Board. 
• Sent the Water Supply Reports to the member agencies. 
• Responded to two Public Records Act requests. 
• Assisting management staff with District policy and 

procedures. 
• Prepare all of the necessary logistics for the upcoming 

Elected Officials Forum, including letters and emails to 
agencies 

• Contact vendors/contractors whose insurance certificates 
are close to expiration 

• Worked with Great Wolf Lodge on logistics for Special 
Board meeting 

• Worked with digital media company on logo in Board 
Room 

• Changed District forms with new logo 
• Scheduled meetings for Rob, Karl, and Harvey, MET 

Directors’ luncheon meeting, OC MET Managers, 
MWDOC Managers and ordered lunches for several 
meetings. 

• Registered staff and board members for conferences and 
events; scheduled travel for ACWA Fall Conference, 
AMWA, AWWA, CCEEB; CED; ACC-OC State Advocacy; 
ACWA State Leg. Comm.; DC legislative initiatives, ACWA 
Federal Affairs Committee; CalWEP; Water Smart 
Innovations Conf.; WERF; and other misc. travel and/or 
workshops, which includes preparation of purchase 
requisitions and back-up.  

• Assisted in scheduling meetings with the Board and the 
Board of Supervisors on support for WaterFix. 

MWDOC/OCWD Joint  
Administration 

• No new information.                                                               

Health Benefits  • Open enrollment information for health benefits was 
provided to all eligible participants.  Open enrollment will 
end on November 10th.  Any changes must be received by 
that time. 

• Information on the flexible spending plans will be provided 
during the month of November.  

• Staff is evaluating the Long-Term Disability and Life 
Insurance and Employee Assistance Program benefits, 
currently up for renewal.  Information is included in the 
A&F Committee Packet.        
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Records Management  
 

Staff continues to evaluate and scan remaining documents 
into the records repository continues.  

CalPERS Katie attended a CalPERS Seminar on October 14th.  This is 
beneficial in learning more about CalPERS Retirement 
benefits, as well as Social Security and Medicare.                     

Agency Inquiries  • Provided the General Manager’s survey to agencies.      
Recruitment /Departures • Recruitment efforts are underway for the following 

positions:  
o Public Affairs Assistant and Public Affairs 

Specialist.  
o WEROC/Engineering Intern   

• Public Affairs Assistant Stephanie Franco resigned as of 
October 30th.    

• Pre-employment screening process is underway for a 
Water Use Efficiency intern.    

Other  
Projects and Activities  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• The RFP for Architectural, Space Planning, Interior Design 
and Construction Administration Services closed on 
October 30th.  Staff reviewed the proposals and a 
recommendation is included in the A&F packet.       

• The atrium trellis was recently painted and the window 
frames/mullions will be painted in the next few weeks.  
Staff is evaluating patio furniture for the newly renovated 
area.     

• Staff held a teleconference with Ralph Andersen and 
Associates in reviewing the tasks and preparing for the 
salary and benefits study.  Staff will be working closely 
with Ralph Andersen in providing and verifying information 
for the study.     

• The Database Coordinator continues making progress in 
cleanup of the ACT Database.  Nearly 5,000 obsolete 
records have been removed to date.     

• It is anticipated the conference room glass doors for the 
MWDOC lobby area will be installed in the next few 
weeks.       

• Staff is coordinating with legal counsel in finalizing the 
General Manager’s contract per the Board’s approval at 
the October Board meeting.   

• All Staff meeting was held on October 11th.  
• Staff participated in Water Use Efficiency intern interviews 

on October 18th and 24th.   
• Staff participated in the “Great Shakeout” on October 19th.  
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Item No. 8b 
 
 

 
 

INFORMATION ITEM 
November 8, 2017 

 
TO: Administration & Finance Committee 
 (Directors Thomas, Barbre, Finnegan) 
 
FROM: Robert J. Hunter, General Manager  Staff Contact:  Jeff Stalvey 
 
SUBJECT: Finance and IT Pending Items Report 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The following list details the status of special projects that are in-progress or to be completed 
during FY 2017-18. 
 

Description % of  
Completion 

Estimated 
Completion 
date 

Status 

Finance    

Further Implementation of WUE 
Landscape Programs Databases and 
Web Site. 

On-going On-going In Progress 

Government Compensation in California 
Report 2017 0% 03-30-18 Not Started 

State Controller Report preparation 
FY16-17 70% 11-30-17 Not Started 

Fiscal Year 2016/17 Annual Audit by 
Vazquez CPA 100% 11-02-17 Completed 

Annual Financial Statement Report 
FY16-17 100% 11-02-17 Completed 

Preparation of documents for FY18-19 
budget process. 0% 5-31-18 Not Started 

Working with Davis Farr to write our 
grant policy to comply with audit 
guidelines 

100% 10-31-17 Completed 

2017 W-9 collection for water rebates. 
Currently holding 1 June and 8 October 
rebate checks, awaiting a completed W-
9 form 

On-going On-going In Progress 
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Information Technology    

Network security issues (hackers, 
viruses and spam emails) On-going On-going Continuous system 

monitoring 
Purchase and upgrade DATA Server. 100% 12/31/17 Completed 

Purchase and implement Intrusion 
detection and prevention for District 
Network. 

0% 6/30/17 Not Started 

Purchase and implement 2 Cisco Power 
Over Ethernet switches and Cisco 
Router into existing Network.  

20% 3/31/17 In Progress 

Implement Backups and Disaster 
Recovery for VOIP telephone System. 
 

10% 3/31/17 In Progress 

 
 

Description % of  
Completion 

Estimated 
Completion 
date 

Status 

FY 2017-18 Completed Special Tasks 
Finance 

Tax filing for Water Facilities  FY16-17 100% 9/15/17 Completed 

Information Technology    

Purchase and implement 2 UPS units for 
IT Server room. 100% 9/30/17 Completed 
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Budgeted (Y/N):  N Budgeted amount:  N/A Core  X Choice __ 

Action item amount:  N/A Line item:   

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted):   
 

Item No. 9 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM 
November 8, 2017 

 
 
TO: Administration & Finance Committee 
 (Directors Thomas, Osborne, Finnegan) 
 
FROM: Robert Hunter, General Manager  Staff Contact:  Kevin Hostert 
 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Water Usage Data, Tier 2 Projection, and Water Supply Info. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Administration & Finance Committee receive and file this information. 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
Committee recommends (To be determined at Committee Meeting) 
 
 
REPORT 
  
The attached figures show the recent trend of water consumption in Orange County (OC), 
an estimate of Tier 2 volume for MWDOC, and selected water supply information.   
 

Fig. 1 OC Water Usage, Monthly by Supply   MWD imported water was the main 
supply in September, imported usage has increased due to the In Lieu 
program.   

Fig. 2 OC Water Usage, Monthly, Comparison to Previous Years    Water usage in 
September 2017 was below average compared to the last 5 years but was 
higher than in September of 2015 but less than September 2016.  We are 
seeing a slight increase in overall water usage compared to the historical lows 
of the 2015-16 Fiscal Year.  In June 2016, all water conservation became 
voluntary for MWDOC agencies and the Great California Drought was 
declared over by the Governor in April 2017.   

Fig. 3 Historical OC Water Consumption The Fiscal Year is very new but OC water 
consumption is projected to be 545,000 AF in FY 2017-18 (this includes ~15 
TAF of agricultural usage and non-retail water agency usage). This is about 
26,000 AF more than FY 2016-17 and is about 52,000 AF more than FY 2015-
16 (During the SWRCB mandatory water restrictions). Water usage per person 
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 Page 2 
 

is projected to be slightly higher than in FY 2017-18 for Orange County at 152 
gallons per day (This includes recycled water).  Although OC population has 
increased 20% over the past two decades, water usage has not increased, on 
average.   A long-term decrease in per-capita water usage is attributed mostly 
to Water Use Efficiency (water conservation) efforts.  

MWDOC “Firm” Water Purchases, 2016 “Firm” water above the Tier 1 limit will 
be charged at the higher Tier 2 rate.  Tier 2 purchases are zero in 2017. 

 
Water Supply Information Includes data on Rainfall in OC; the OCWD Basin overdraft; 
Northern California and Colorado River Basin hydrologic data; the State Water Project 
(SWP) Allocation, and regional storage volumes.  The data have implications for the 
magnitude of supplies from the three watersheds that are the principal sources of water for 
OC.  Note that a hydrologic year is Oct. 1st through Sept. 30th. 
 

• Orange County’s accumulated rainfall through October was below average for this 
period.  Orange County saw rainfall 8 inches above normal in WY 2017.   

  
• Northern California accumulated precipitation through October was around 29% of 

normal for this period. Water Year 2017 was the wettest water year on record. The 
Northern California snowpack was 0% of normal as of October 30th. The State of 
California was in a declared Drought Emergency that started January 2014 and just 
recently ended in April of 2017.  As of early October,  only 8% of California is still 
suffering from moderate or severe drought. The State Water Project Contractors 
Table A Allocation was set at 85% as of the end of April.   
 

• Colorado River Basin accumulated precipitation through October was 93% average 
for this period.  The Upper Colorado Basin snowpack was 45% of normal as of 
October 30th.  The Colorado River Basin saw above average conditions in WY 2017 
but the region has been still trying to rebound from the previous long term drought.  
Lake Mead and Lake Powell combined have about 68% of their average storage 
volume for this time of year. If Lake Mead’s level falls below a “trigger” limit 1,075 ft. 
at the end of a calendar year, then a shortage will be declared by the US Bureau of 
Reclamation (USBR), impacting Colorado River water deliveries to the Lower Basin 
states. As of late October, Lake Mead levels were 6.5’ above the “trigger” limit.  The 
USBR predicts that the end of 2017 or the end of 2018 will not hit the “trigger” level.   
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